
           
 

AGENDA
ESCAMBIA COUNTY PLANNING BOARD

October 6, 2020–8:35 a.m.
Escambia County Central Office Complex

3363 West Park Place, Room 104
             
1. Call to Order.  
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.  
 

3. Proof of Publication and Waive the Reading of the Legal Advertisement.   
 

4. Approval of Minutes.  
 

A.   A. RECOMMENDATION: That the Planning Board review and approve the
Meeting Resume' Minutes of the September 1, 2020, Planning Board
Meeting.

B. Planning Board Monthly Action Follow-up Report for September 2020

C. Planning Board 6-Month Outlook for October 2020
 

5. Acceptance of Planning Board Meeting Packet.  
 

6. Public Hearings.  
 

A.   Case #: OSP-2020-01
Applicant: Frank Westmark, Agent for First Baptist Church of Cottage Hill
Address: 1400 Highway 29 N
Property Size: 10.04 (+/-)
From: Conservation Neighborhood
To: MU-S

 

B.   Case #: OSP-2020-02
Applicant: Buddy Page, Agent for Cleveland R. Campbell, Sr, Owner
Address: 1000 BLK Pine Top Lane
Property Size: 19.3



From: Conservation Neighborhood
To: MU-S

 

7. Action/Discussion/Info Items.  
 

8. Public Forum.  
 

9. Director's Review.  
 

10. County Attorney's Report.  
 

11. Scheduling of Future Meetings.  
 

The next Regular Planning Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday,
November 10, 2020, at 8:30 a.m., in the Escambia County Central Office
Complex, Room 104, First Floor, 3363 West Park Place, Pensacola, Florida.

 

 

12. Announcements/Communications.  
 

13. Adjournment.  
 



   
Planning Board-Regular   4. A.           
Meeting Date: 10/06/2020  

Agenda Item:
A. RECOMMENDATION: That the Planning Board review and approve the
Meeting Resume' Minutes of the September 1, 2020, Planning Board Meeting.

B. Planning Board Monthly Action Follow-up Report for September 2020

C. Planning Board 6-Month Outlook for October 2020

Attachments
Draft September 1, 2020 Regular Planning Board Meeting Minutes
Monthly Action Follow Up
6 Month Outlook



D R A F T
MINUTES OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY PLANNING BOARD

 September 1, 2020

CENTRAL OFFICE COMPLEX
3363 WEST PARK PLACE, BOARD CHAMBERS

PENSACOLA, FLORIDA
(8:32 A.M. – 9:56 A.M.)

Present: Reid Rushing   
  Jay Ingwell   
  Chairman Wayne Briske   
  Timothy Pyle   
  Patty Hightower   
  Walker Wilson   

Absent: Eric Fears 
  Gary Sammons 
  Stephen Opalenik 

Staff Present: Andrew Holmer, Division Manager, Planning & Zoning 
Juan Lemos, Senior Planner, Planning & Zoning 
Kayla Meador, Administrative Supervisor 
Kia Johnson, Assistant County Attorney 
Rachel Merlin, Administrative Assistant 

 

 

               

1.  Call to Order.  
 

2.  Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.  
 

3.  Proof of Publication and Waive the Reading of the Legal Advertisement.  
 
  Motion by Jay Ingwell, Seconded by Timothy Pyle 

Motion was made to waive the reading of the legal advertisement.  
  Vote: 5 - 0 Approved
  Other: Eric Fears (ABSENT) 

  Gary Sammons (ABSENT) 
 

4.  Approval of Minutes.  



 

A.     
A. RECOMMENDATION: That the Planning Board review and approve
the Meeting Resume' Minutes of the August 4, 2020 Planning Board
Meeting.

B. Planning Board 6-Month Outlook for September 2020.

   

 
  Motion by Reid Rushing, Seconded by Jay Ingwell 

Motion was made to approve the minutes from the August 4, 2020
Planning Board Meeting.  

  Vote: 5 - 0 Approved
  Other: Eric Fears (ABSENT) 

  Gary Sammons (ABSENT) 
 

5.  Acceptance of Planning Board Meeting Packet.  
 
  Motion by Reid Rushing, Seconded by Walker Wilson 

Motion was made to accept the meeting package.  
  Vote: 5 - 0 Approved
  Other: Eric Fears (ABSENT) 

  Gary Sammons (ABSENT) 
 

6.  Public Hearings.  
 

A.     A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending
Chapter 3, Section 3.04 Definitions; OBJ FLU 1.3, FLU Map Designations
and FLU 3.1 Rural Development

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County
Commissioners (BCC) for adoption, an Ordinance amending the
Comprehensive Plan: amending Chapter 3, Section 3.04, Definitions;
amending OBJ FLU 1.3 Future Land Use Map designations; and
amending OBJ FLU 3.1 Rural Development.

   

 
  Motion by Jay Ingwell, Seconded by Reid Rushing 

Motion was made to postpone both A and B for a minimum of 60 days
to allow staff, interested citizens, and the consultant to sit down and
discuss this and then actually conduct a minimum of one workshop
prior to bringing it back to the Planning Board.
  



  Vote: 4 - 1 Approved
  Voted No: Timothy Pyle 
 

B.     A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending
Chapter 3, Sections 3-1.3, 3-2.2, and 3-2.3

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County
Commissioners (BCC) for adoption, an Ordinance to the Land
Development Code (LDC) Chapter 3, Section 3-1.3 “Zoning and Future
Land Use,” Subsection (G) “Future Land Use Designations,” and
Subsection (I) “Zoning Implementation of FLU,” to add the Future Land
Use Category of Agriculture Residential; amending Sections 3-2.2
“Agricultural District (AGR),” and 3-2.3 “Rural Residential district (RR)” to
provide for AGR and RR  Zoning districts in the AR Future Land Use
category.

   

 
  Motion by Jay Ingwell, Seconded by Reid Rushing 

Motion was made to postpone both A and B for a minimum of 60 days
to allow staff, interested citizens, and the consultant to sit down and
discuss this and then actually conduct a minimum of one workshop
prior to bringing it back to the Planning Board. 

  Vote: 4 - 1 Approved
  Voted No: Timothy Pyle 
 

7.  Action/Discussion/Info Items.  
 

A.  Tiny Homes Discussion  
 

8.  Public Forum.  
 

9.  Director's Review.  
 

A.     August 6, 2020 BCC Minutes    
 

10.  County Attorney's Report.  
 

11.  Scheduling of Future Meetings.  
 

 The next Regular Planning Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday,
October 6, 2020 at 8:30 a.m., in the Escambia County Central Office
Complex, Room 104, First Floor, 3363 West Park Place, Pensacola,
Florida.

 

 

12.  Announcements/Communications.  



 

13.  Adjournment.  
 



1 
 

Memorandum 
 
TO:  Planning Board 
 
FROM: Rachel Merlin, Board Clerk 
 
DATE:  September 25, 2020 
 
RE:  Monthly Action Follow-Up Report for September 2020 
 
The following is a status report of Planning Board (PB) agenda items for the prior month of 
September. Some items include information from previous months in cases where final disposition 
has not yet been determined. Post-monthly actions are included (when known) as of report 
preparation date. Items are listed in chronological order, beginning with the PB initial hearing on 
the topic. 
 
PROJECTS, PLANS, & PROGRAMS 
 
 
COMMITTEES & WORKING GROUP MEETINGS 
 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENTS 
  
• Text Amendments: 

CPA-2020-01 AR FLU  
09-01-20    PB postponed to future date 

• Map Amendments: 
 

LSA-2019-05 FLU change from C to MU-U 
12-03-19 PB recommended approval 
01-07-20 BCC dropped case 
04-02-20 BCC postponed 
06-18-20 BCC meeting (pulled by applicant) 
08-06-20 BCC transmitted to DEO 
 

LSA-2020-02 FLU change from C to MU-U 
07-06-20 PB recommended approval 
08-06-20 BCC transmitted to DEO 
 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
3363 WEST PARK PLACE 

PENSACOLA, FLORIDA 32505 
PHONE: 850-595-3475 

FAX: 850-595-3481 
www.myescambia.com 



2 
 

 
 
LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE ORDINANCES 
 
RV Ordinance 
 08-04-20 PB recommended approval with changes 
 09-03-20 BCC approved original ordinance 
AR FLU LDC Ordinance 
 09-01-20         PB postponed to future date 
 
REZONING CASES  

 



PLANNING BOARD MONTHLY SCHEDULE 
SIX MONTH OUTLOOK FOR October 2020 

(Revised 9/25/20)  
 

A.H. = Adoption Hearing T.H. = Transmittal Hearing P.H. = Public Hearing 
* Indicates topic/date is estimated—subject to staff availability for project completion and/or citizen liaison  

 

Meeting Date 
 

LDC Changes and/or 
Public Hearings 

Comprehensive 
Plan 

Amendments 
Rezoning 

Reports, 
Discussion and/or 

Action Items 

Tuesday, October 6, 2020  • OSP-2020-01 
• OSP-2020-02 

• Z-2020-07  

Tuesday, November 10,2020     

Tuesday, December 1, 2020     

Tuesday, January 5, 2021     

Tuesday, February 2, 2021     

Tuesday, March 2, 2021     

 
Disclaimer: This document is provided for informational purposes only. Schedule is subject to change. Verify all topics on the current meeting 
agenda one week prior to the meeting date. 



   
Planning Board-Regular   6. A.           
Meeting Date: 10/06/2020  
CASE : OSP-2020-01
APPLICANT: Frank Westmark, Agent for First Baptist Church of Cottage Hill 

ADDRESS: 1400 Highway 29 N 
PROPERTY REF. NO.: 03-1N-31-1302-000-001  
FUTURE LAND USE: Conservation Neighbourhood  
ZONING DISTRICT: LDR, Low Density Residential district  
DSAP LAND USE : Conservation Neighborhood 

BCC MEETING DATE: 11/05/2020 

SUBMISSION DATA:
REQUEST:
The applicant is requesting to remove a parcel from Mid-West Escambia County Sector
Plan, Jacks Branch Detailed Specific Area Plan (DSAP),and also requesting assignment
of Future Land Use category of Mixed-Use Suburban(MU-S).

RELEVANT AUTHORITY:

(1) Escambia County Comprehensive Plan

BACKGROUND
The property owner is requesting a parcel be removed from the Escambia County
Mid-West Sector Plan (SP),in the Jacks Branch Detailed Specific Area Plan (DSAP).
Within the DSAP, the existing land use for the parcel is Conservation Neighborhood with
a maximum residential dwelling of 3 du/acre. The request is to assign a Future Land Use
(FLU) designation of Mixed-Use Suburban (MU-S) to the parcel with no future
development proposed at this time.  According to the Escambia County Property
Appraiser, the vacant parcel totals 10.04 +/-acres.

 

EVALUATION AND ANALYSIS

Attachments
Working Case File
Draft Ordinance with Attachments





 
  

 

 

 

 

OSP-2020-01 
 
 



HIGHWAY 97

ME
ET

IN
G

MUSCOGEE

MEE
TIN

G

SANTA

ROSA

NO
WA

K

WASHINGTON

CA
RR

IN
GT

ON
LA

KE
S

EDEN

MORRIS

SU
CC

ES
S

BOOTHLAKE

HIGHWAY 29

POWER

JACOBS
CEDAR TREE

NEAL

QUINTETTE

JOHN W
ILSON

PA
CE

HI
GH

WA
Y 9

5A
LAKEVIEW

HI
LL

OC
K

CONNIE

RO
CK

Y

ST
AC

EY

WELL LINE

BOOKER

CHARLTON

QUINTETTE

ROBINSON

TA
YL

OR

WILLIAMS
DITCH

SAN

CARLOS

JACKSBRANCH

PLAZA

WE
BB

AN
DA

LU
SIA

MCKENZIE

VIR
EC

EN
T

MAPLE

MO
NR

OE

CHIPPER

MINTZ

RA
NS

OM
BO

OT
H

BECKS LAKE

LINCOLN

YELLOWSTONE

STINNIS

ISABELLA

SHAY

WE
GN

ER
BO

OT
H

BEAVERDAM

ROSE
PETAL

SH
EP

PA
RD

PA
RK

TYLER

WELL LINE

DU
KE

S

KITTRELL

BO
OK

ER

HAZZA
RD

WE
LC

OM
E

RE
GG

IE
OK

AT
IE

GASTON

COTTAGE
HILL

PETTWAY
HI

GH
WA

Y 2
9

GRAYDON

ODOM

BIBBS

TA
LLE

Y

WEL
CO

ME

DANIELLE

TIMSBURY

HARVESTHILL

SANCARLOS

MA
DR

ID

CHESHIRE

PERDIDO

MA
DR

ID

WOODBURY
WOODBURY

SHOEMO
ESTATE

JA
CO

BS

CEDAR
TREE

TAYLOR

BROOKHILLS

VAUGHN

PH
AL

RO
SE

BO
PE

G

SAINT MATTHEWS

DESOTO

RI
TT

EN
BE

RR
Y

CROWNDALE

BA
LB

OA

COOPER

BRITT

SAN CARLOS JE
SS

E

PA
RA

LL
EL

FOREHAND

COOLEY

COWETA

TWIN
PINES

HICKS

VIR
EC

EN
T

JACOBS

PIN
E T

OP

SOCIETY

CALLOWAY

DAYLILY

SANTA ROSA

TWIN
PINES

CEDAR

POINT

CHIPPER

KNOLLWOOD

STONE

NA
VA

RR
O

QU
IN

TE
TT

E

EA
ST

MA
N

RIDGE

PIN
OA

K

0 3,600 7,2001,800
Feet

Legend
Export_Output_46
LOCAL
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR

OSP-2020-01
LOCATION MAP

This map was prepared by 
Escambia County Development Services 
provided for information purposes only. 
The data is not guaranteed accurate 
or suitable for any use other
than that for which it was gathered. 
User: jclemos
Date: 9/10/2020

±



HIGHWAY 29

CEDAR TREE

NEAL

BROOKHILLS

ROSE PETAL

BROOKHILLS

HIGHWAY 29

PIN
E T

OP

CEDAR TREE

KN
OL

LW
OO

D

COOLEY

FO
RE

HA
ND

PINOAK

RIDGE

MDR

Agr

LDMU

HC/LI

LDR

0 970 1,940485
Feet

Legend
Export_Output_46
LOCAL
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR

OSP-2020-01
Zoning LDR

This map was prepared by 
Escambia County Development Services 
provided for information purposes only. 
The data is not guaranteed accurate 
or suitable for any use other
than that for which it was gathered. 
User: jclemos
Date: 9/10/2020

±



JESSEJACOBS

HIGHWAY
29

HIGHWAY
29

POWER

JACOBS

CEDAR TREE

NEAL

LAKEVIEW
FORREST

HI
LL

OC
K

BROOKHILLS

WELL LINE

MORRIS

POWER

MO
NR

OE

CEDAR
POINT

ROSE
PETAL

CO
UL

TE
R

BELMONT

TA
LL

EY

HARVEST

HILL

CEDAR TREE

BROOKHILLS

PH
AL

RO
SE

FO
RE

HA
ND

COOLEY

HIGHWAY 29
HIGHWAY 29

PIN
E T

OP

KNOLLWOOD

RIDGE

PIN
OA

K

RR: RURAL
RESIDENTAL

MU-6: VILLAGES
OF GONZALEZ,
CANTONMENT,
AND FARM HILL

RR: RURAL
RESIDENTAL

AA-15: ACTIVITY
AREA-COTTAGE
HILL\QUINTETTE

AA-15: ACTIVITY
AREA-COTTAGE
HILL\QUINTETTE

AA-15: ACTIVITY
AREA-COTTAGE
HILL\QUINTETTE

0 1,400 2,800700
Feet

Legend
Export_Output_46
LOCAL
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR

OSP-2020-01
Previous FLU 

AA-15 Cottage Hill -Quintette
This map was prepared by 
Escambia County Development Services 
provided for information purposes only. 
The data is not guaranteed accurate 
or suitable for any use other
than that for which it was gathered. 
User: jclemos
Date: 9/10/2020

±



I

RC

MU-S

HIGHWAY 29

CEDAR TREE

NEAL

BROOKHILLS

ROSE PETAL

BROOKHILLS

HIGHWAY 29
PIN

E T
OP

CEDAR TREE

KN
OL

LW
OO

D

COOLEY

FO
RE

HA
ND

PINOAK

RIDGE

0 970 1,940485
Feet

Legend
Export_Output_46
LOCAL
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR

OSP-2020-01
Proposed FLU MU-S

This map was prepared by 
Escambia County Development Services 
provided for information purposes only. 
The data is not guaranteed accurate 
or suitable for any use other
than that for which it was gathered. 
User: jclemos
Date: 9/10/2020

±



HIGHWAY 29

CEDAR TREE

NEAL

BROOKHILLS

ROSE PETAL

BROOKHILLS

HIGHWAY 29
PIN

E T
OP

CEDAR TREE

KN
OL

LW
OO

D

COOLEY

FO
RE

HA
ND

PINOAK

RIDGE

FDOT

0 970 1,940485
Feet

Legend
Export_Output_46
LOCAL
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR

OSP-2020-01
AERIAL MAP

This map was prepared by 
Escambia County Development Services 
provided for information purposes only. 
The data is not guaranteed accurate 
or suitable for any use other
than that for which it was gathered. 
User: jclemos
Date: 9/10/2020

±



Public Hearing Sign



Looking north from subject 
property along Hwy 29



Looking onto subject property



Looking east across Hwy 
29 from subject property







ESCAMBIA COUNTY DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT

3363 West Park Place, Pensacola, FL 32505 (850) 595-3475

MID-WEST ESCAMBIA COUNTYSECTOR PLAN OPT-OUT APPLICATION AND FUTURE LAND

USE ASSIGNMENT

(Revised 6-30-2020)

INSTRUCTIONS

Please contact our office at (595-3475) to make an appointment with a Planner to personally discuss
your site and prospective plans for it, and to review the application form with you to answer any questions
you may have.

It is important for the application packet to be complete and on time in order to process and schedule
your request for the required public hearing(s). The Planning Board holds public hearings once a month.
Application closing dates for these hearings are provided in the attached schedule (Attachment A). In
order for your application to move through the process in a timely manner, it is important for all items on
the application to be completed. Incorrect or missing information could delay the hearing of your request.
NOTE: The applicant or his/her agent, must be present at the Planning Board meeting. It is also highly
recommended that he or she be present at the subseguent Board of County Commissioners meeting.

An application is not considered complete until all of the items listed on the

Application Checklist (attached herein) are received.

The Opt-Out application request and Future Land Use assignment is a concurrent two-step process:
approval of the Opt-Out request will be required first; the applicant will also request assignment of a
Future Land Use category to be consistent with the underlying zoning district for approval. Chapter
16, FLU 16.6.1.V of the Escambia County Comprehensive Plan provides guidelines for removing
properties from an approved DSAP.

Please note the completion and notarized certification(s) required herein. The owner and/or agent acting
in his/her behalf, must sign the certification(s) where indicated on the application. Signatures must be
properly notarized. If an agent is handling the request, the owner must sign the application and submit
an Affidavit of Ownership & Limited Power of Attorney (attached herein) authorizing said agent to act in
his/her behalf.

FEES: Application fees can be found on the Escambia County website: https://mvescambia.com/our-
services/development-services/planning-zoning/rezoning/planning-board

Please remember, the Planning Board meets only once a month. Applications received after the
deadline for a particular meeting will not be heard until the following meeting.

NOTE: Whenever an applicant would like any County Staff member to appear and testify at a hearing
other than the normal public hearings required to process your request, a minimum notification of 5-10
days to the individual staff member and the Development Services Department is required in advance of
the hearing.

Page 1 of7



















































The First Baptist Church of Cottage Hill, Florida, Inc.
Address of property applying to withdraw from the Mid-West

Escambia County Sector Plan: 1400 N. Hwy. 29
Parcel Number: 03-1N-31-1302-000-001

Applicant's Data and Analysis

As the approval of an Opt-Out request will trigger a Future Land Use
assignment for the parcel, county staff will review the requested Future Land
Use category by the applicant to ensure consistency with applicable
regulations. The applicant's request for the Future Land Use category will be
evaluated using the following criteria:

Explanatory note from Applicant: For clarity and easier reading, the
County's language from page 7 of the Opt-Out application dated 06-30-2020
is repeated here in black ink, italicized. Applicant's responses are in dark
blue ink. We recognize this application is a work in progress and applaud the
improvements that have been made thus far.

1. A comparative analysis of the impact of both the current

and the proposed future land use categories. If a
specific development is proposed, then the applicant
must show that the infrastructure is available to support

the most intense development allowed under the
requested Future Land Use category

APPLICANTS RESPONSE.

l.The current Future Land Use (FLU) is Conservation Neighborhood, in the
Jack's Branch Detailed Specific Area Plan (DSAP). The proposed FLU of MU-S
is the only one consistent with the applicant's existing low density residential
(LDR). (See attached Exhibit A, DSAP Conservation Neighborhood
Guidelines, and Exhibit B, Escambia County Comprehensive Plan 2030,
Chapter 7 Future Land Use Element, FLUM Mixed-Use Suburban (MU-S).

2. There is no development project proposed.

3. The current FLU, which is the Sector Plan overlay on the applicant's
approximately ten-acre parcel, is Conservation Neighborhood. It allows a
maximum density of 3 DU/AC, or 30 dwelling units total. The proposed FLU







































































































Comprehensive Plan  
Removal of Parcel from the Optional Sector Plan (amending map) 

and assignment of a new Future Land Use Category  
Staff Analysis  

 
General Data 
 
Project Name:  OSP 2020-01 
Location:  1400 Highway 29 North    
Parcel #s:  03-1N-31-1302-000-001    
Acreage:  10.04 (+/-) acres 
Request:  Opt-out of the Sector Plan and assign Future Land Use category 
Current Zoning:  Low Density Residential district (LDR)  
Future Land Use Requested:   Mixed Use Suburban (MU-S)   
DSAP Land Use:  Conservation Neighborhood (Jacks Branch DSAP)  
Applicant:  Frank Westmark, Agent for First Baptist Church of Cottage Hill, 

Owner 
Meeting Dates: Planning Board: October 6, 2020 
   BCC: November 5, 2020 
 
 
Site Description and Summary of Proposed Amendment: 
 
The property owner is requesting a parcel be removed from the Escambia County Mid-
West Sector Plan (SP), in the Jacks Branch Detailed Specific Area Plan (DSAP).   
Within the DSAP, the existing land use for the parcels is Conservation Neighborhood 
with a maximum residential density of 3 du/acre. 
 
The applicant’s request is to assign a Future Land Use (FLU) designation of Mixed-Use 
Suburban (MU-S) to the parcel with no future development proposed at this time. 
 
According to the Escambia County Property Appraiser, the parcel is vacant totaling 
10.04 +/- acres. 
 
Standard Map Amendment Criteria 
 
1. Availability of Facilities and Services: 
The availability of public facilities and services are necessary to accommodate existing 
and future development, to promote orderly growth within areas best suited to 
accommodate development, protect sensitive natural resource systems and rural and 



agricultural areas. All level of service (LOS) standards are evaluated for compliance 
during the review processes stated in the Land Development Code (LDC) for proposed 
development. 
 
A. Sanitary Sewer 
Ensure the safe and efficient provision of wastewater services through 
coordination with service providers, maximized use of existing facilities, 
maintenance of appropriate levels of service, correction of existing deficiencies, 
and protection of natural resources. 
 
CP Policy INF 1.1.7 Level of Service (LOS) Standards. Average LOS standard for 
wastewater service is 210 gallons per residential connection per day, and the peak LOS 
will be 350 gallons per residential connection per day. For nonresidential uses, the LOS 
requirements will be based upon an Equivalent Residential Connection (ERC), as may 
be recalculated by the service provider from time to time, and on the size of the 
nonresidential water meter. Escambia County will continue to work with the water 
providers to ensure that adequate capacity is available. 
 
CP Policy INF 1.1.11 Required New Service Connection. All new structures intended 
for human occupancy will connect to the ECUA wastewater system unless ECUA has 
determined that it is not feasible to provide wastewater service to the proposed 
structures. Those structures not required to connect to the ECUA wastewater system 
will not be issued a building permit until the applicant has obtained the appropriate 
permit from the Health Department. 
 
B. Solid Waste Disposal 
Ensure the safe and efficient provision of solid waste services through 
coordination with service providers, maximized use of existing landfill facilities, 
maintenance of appropriate levels of service, promotion of recycling and reuse, 
and protection of natural resources. 
 
CP Policy INF 2.1.2 Perdido Landfill Operation. Escambia County will provide and 
operate the Perdido Landfill so as to accommodate the municipal solid waste disposal  
needs of the entire County. 
 
CP Policy INF 2.1.4 Level of Service (LOS) Standards. The LOS standard for solid 
waste disposal will be 6 pounds per capita per day. 
 
C. Potable Water 
Ensure the safe and efficient provision of potable water services through 
coordination with service providers, maximized use of existing facilities, 
maintenance of appropriate levels of service, correction of existing deficiencies, 
water conservation, and protection of natural resources. 
 
CP Policy INF 4.1.1 Service Agreements. Potable water service will be provided at 



established levels of service within Escambia County consistent with the Interlocal 
Agreement between the County and ECUA, the Escambia County Utilities Authority 
Act, and franchise agreements between Escambia County and other water service 
providers that were in operation on August 1, 1981. 
 

CP Policy INF 4.1.6 Developer Responsibility.  The cost of water line extensions 
made necessary by new development will be the responsibility of the developer 
unless otherwise funded by the service provider. 
 
CP Policy INF 4.1.7 Level of Service (LOS) Standards. The LOS standard for 
potable water service within Escambia County will be 250 gallons per residential 
connection per day. For non-residential uses, the LOS requirements will be based 
upon an Equivalent Residential Connection (ERC) to be calculated by the service 
provider at the time of application. Escambia County will continue to work with the 
water providers to ensure that adequate capacity is available. 
 
Analysis: As shown in the tables in Section 4.03, Potable Water, of the Mid West 
Sector Plan document, an analysis was done to determine the infrastructure needed 
to support development within the DSAP area. Potable water for this area in the DSAP 
is supplied by Cottage Hill Waterworks.  The level of service (LOS) for potable water 
within Escambia County is 250 gallons per residential connection per day and the non-
residential uses are based on equivalent residential connection to be calculated by the 
service provider at the time of application.  Wastewater is supplied to the region by 
Emerald Coast Utilities Authority with the LOS standards within Escambia County 
being 210 gallons per residential connection per day, and the non-residential uses are 
calculated by the service prover at the time of application.  Solid waste service LOS is 
6 pounds per capita per day.  Potable water was analyzed for both the five year and 
the buildout development programs. A conceptual potable water distribution system 
was developed based upon this analysis and is available in Figure 4.03A of the DSAP 
document.  Funding for any expansion or improvements to the potable distribution and 
water treatment systems within a service area are typically generated by the 
respective Utility Authority.  
At the time of submittal, the applicant’s analysis documented that there is no 
development proposed at this time, however all the LOS standards for sanitary sewer, 
potable water, and waste disposal must be identified and reviewed for any proposed 
development. 
 
D. Stormwater Management 
Ensure the safe and efficient provision of stormwater management through 
maximized use of existing facilities, maintenance of appropriate levels of service, 
correction of existing deficiencies, and protection of natural resources. 
 
CP Policy INF 3.1.5 Concurrency Management.  Escambia County will ensure the 
provision of stormwater management facilities concurrent with the demand for such 
facilities as created by development or redevelopment through implementation of the 
Concurrency Management System. 



 
CP Policy INF 3.1.6 Developer Responsibilities.  Installation of stormwater 
management facilities made necessary by new development will be the responsibility 
of the developer. 
 
CP Policy CON 1.3.1 Stormwater Management. Escambia County will protect 
surface water quality by implementing the stormwater management policies of the 
Infrastructure Element to improve existing stormwater management systems and 
ensure the provision of stormwater management facilities concurrent with the demand 
for such facilities. 
 
Analysis: Based on the DSAP’s original analysis for stormwater in areas of the Sector 
Plan, stormwater systems should be developed as regional systems and encompass 
multiple areas of development.  Attempts should be made to design stormwater 
treatment and attenuation systems and supporting conveyance pipes and swales as 
complete systems. All developments are required to meet or exceed the standards 
established by the Northwest Florida Water Management District (NWFWMD).  
The applicant stated that there is no proposed development at this time. Compliance 
with adopted stormwater management provisions will be reviewed and confirmed prior 
to any site development plan approval.  
 
E. Traffic 
Continue to provide a safe, convenient, efficient, and cost-effective multimodal 
transportation system and roadway network for present and future residents. 
 
CP Policy MOB 1.1.1 Level of Service (LOS) Standards. Levels of Service (LOS) will 
be used to evaluate facility capacity.  Escambia County will adopt LOS standards for all 
roadways as indicated in the LDC. The standards for Strategic Intermodal System (SIS) 
facilities may be revised based on changes to the federal classification of these 
roadways. These standards are not regulatory but provide a basis by which the County 
may monitor congestion and coordinate needed improvements with FDOT. 
 
CP Policy MOB 1.1.2 On-site Facilities. All new private development will be required 
to provide safe and convenient on-site traffic flow as indicated in the LDC. 

 
MOB 1.1.7 Access Management. Escambia County will promote access management 
by limiting the number of conflict points that a motorist experiences during travel, 
separating conflict points as much as possible when they cannot be eliminated, and 
controlling the turning movements to facilitate traffic flow on affected roadways. 
 
Analysis: Based on Section 4.02 in the Public Facilities Plan under the Midwest Sector 
Plan, a transportation analysis was conducted on different roadways and segments 
evaluating the existing facilities and travel characteristics as well as the potential 
impacts and road capacity needs for the five year interim period and the buildout of the 
plan. A review of the area shows that various transportation improvements are planned 



near the DSAP, including capacity expansions of US 29, Interstate 10, and Nine Mile 
Road. The County’s Traffic and Transportation department has provided comments. 
 
At the time of submittal, the applicant stated there is no proposed development for this 
parcel. Any development application will require submittal, review, and approval thru the 
Site Plan Review process, meeting all the requirements of the LDC and Comprehensive 
Plan. 
 
F. Recreation and Open Space 
The purpose of the Recreation and Open Space Element is to ensure adequate 
recreational opportunities for the citizens of Escambia County through the provision 
of a comprehensive system of public and private park facilities. These facilities may 
include, but are not limited to, natural reservations, parks and playgrounds, trails, 
beaches and public access to beaches, open spaces, and waterways. 
 
Analysis:   Conservation Neighborhoods are intended to provide a more efficient and 
environmentally protective development pattern.  As per Mid-West Sector Plan, Section 
3.03, Conservation Neighborhood Guidelines, Open Space, the intent is to be low 
density, clustered communities with an interconnected open space that will serve to 
protect and preserve areas of significant natural resources and wildlife habitat while 
offering passive recreational opportunities to residents.  Parks and recreational facilities 
within a neighborhood will promote physical activity as well as adding to the overall 
value of the area. 
The applicant stated that there is no proposed development for the parcel, however, any 
future development must go through the Development Review process and meet all 
standards for Recreation and Open Space in the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
G. Public School Facilities 
CP Policy ICE 1.1.2 Interlocal Agreements. Escambia County will implement adopted 
interlocal agreements with the Escambia County School Board, the City of Milton, the 
City of Pensacola, the City of Gulf Breeze, and Santa Rosa County so as to provide for 
coordination and evaluation of development proposals that affect the bays, bayous, 
sound, or gulf (including estuaries and estuarine systems). 
 
Analysis: As per the Sector Plan, Section 4.08, for Schools, an analysis was completed 
for the purposes of estimating DSAP impacts for both the five year and buildout 
conditions. Based on the public records of Escambia County, the assigned schools that 
service the area are Jim Allen, Ransom and Tate.  The school district staff is part of the 
Site Plan Review process having the ability to comment on all proposed projects in 
Escambia County.  The applicant stated there are no plans to develop and although any 
increase in density may or may not have an influence on student population, the exact 
number of students cannot be calculated until a plan is submitted thru the Site Plan 
Review process. 
 
 



2. Impact on Natural Resources 
 
A. Wellheads 
CP Policy CON 1.4.1 Wellhead Protection. Escambia County will provide 
comprehensive wellhead protection from potential adverse impacts to current and 
future public water supplies. The provisions will establish specific wellhead protection 
areas and address incompatible land uses, including prohibited activities and materials, 
within those areas. 
 

Analysis: Based on the Geographical Information System (GIS) layer, the subject 
parcel is not located in a wellhead protection area.   
 
B. Historically Significant Sites  
CP Policy FLU 1.2.1 State Assistance.  Escambia County will utilize all available 
resources of the Florida Department of State, Division of Historical Resources in the 
identification of archeological and/or historic sites or structures within the County and will 
utilize guidance, direction, and technical assistance received from this agency. 
 
Analysis: The applicant provided documentation stating there are no previously 
recorded historical resources within the parcel.  The Escambia County Comprehensive 
Plan has a section for historical preservation and at any time during development if 
artifacts are discovered, they are to cease construction under policy OBJ FLU 1.2 
Historic Resources, in the Escambia County Comprehensive Plan.   
 
C. Natural Environment 
CP Policy CON 1.1.2 Wetland and Habitat Indicators.  Escambia County has 
adopted and will use the National Wetlands Inventory Map, the Escambia County Soils 
Survey, and the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission’s (FFWCC) 
LANDSAT imagery as indicators of the potential presence of wetlands or listed wildlife 
habitat in the review of applications for development approval.  
 
CP Policy CON 1.1.6 Habitat Protection. Escambia County will coordinate with the 
FDEP, FFWCC, and other state or federal agencies so as to provide the fullest 
protection to marine or wildlife habitats that may be impacted by existing or proposed 
development within the County. 
 
CP Policy CON 1.3.6 Wetland Development Provisions. Development in wetlands will 
not be allowed unless sufficient uplands do not exist to avoid a taking.  In this case, 
development in wetlands will be restricted to allow residential density uses as indicated 
by the LDC. 
 
CP Policy CON 1.6.3 Tree Protection.  Escambia County will protect trees through 
LDC provisions. 
 



Analysis:  As stated in the Sector Plan document, Section 5.01, Natural Resources, the 
DSAP contains significant wetland systems that are listed as a Regionally Significant 
Natural Resource by the Emerald Coast Regional Planning Council and the final design 
was to avoid and minimize wetland impacts to the greatest extent possible.  The 
applicant stated that there is no development proposed on the subject parcel.  Once a 
project is proposed, the application will be reviewed and must receive approval through 
the Site Plan Review process. 
 
3. Comprehensive Plan requirements for changes to an existing DSAP. 

 
OBJ FLU 16.6 Specific Area Plans 
 
Changes to an Existing DSAP:  Any addition or deletion of property or changes to the 
neighborhood, center or district boundaries in an approved DSAP shall follow the 
County’s established processes. It shall include an evaluation and analysis of the 
impacts to the approved or planned land uses and the ability of the proposed 
amendment to meet the principles and guidelines outlined in this plan.  Such additions 
or deletions shall not be designed to create remnant areas or fragmented DSAPs. 
 
Evaluation and Analysis.  In recognitions of the benefits of long-range planning for 
specific areas, Escambia County   adopted the Sector plan which is intended to promote 
long-term planning for development and conservation. The primary component of the 
Sector plan is two DSAP land use plans. The two DSAP land use plans, Muscogee 
DSAP and Jacks Branch, capture the consensus long-term vision for the area.  Both 
DSAPs were assigned development types and associated densities based on the 
proportionate share of the overall sector plan.   
The total developable land under the Muscogee DSAP, located in the southern section 
of the SP, is approximately 3,380 acres; under the Jacks Branch DSAP, located in the 
northern section of the SP, the total developable land is approximately 5,231.70 acres, 
as can be identified in Figure 2.01A, Attachment A. 
 
The subject parcel is in the southeast area of the Jacks Branch DSAP with access from 
Highway 29.  Analysis of the areas under the DSAP Land Use Plan designated the 
parcel as being Conservation Neighborhood. If approved, the requested removal of the 
parcel would not create a fragmented DSAP in Section JB-51 with 10 parcels. 
 
4. Parcel size in relation to the individual DSAP land use category and in relation 
to the overall Sector Plan, and the aggregate acreage of any granted opt-outs. 
 
The total developable acreage in the entire Sector Plan is 8,611.80 acres. Based on 
staff calculations, utilizing data from DSAP document Section 2.02, the applicant’s 
parcel totaling 10.04 +/- acres, represent 0.11% of the existing developable acreage of 
the Sector Plan.  
Under Section 2.02 Development Program calculation tables, (page 34 of the DSAP) 
the total residential developable acreage of the Jacks Branch DSAP under the 



Conservation Neighborhood Land Use is 2,565.6 acres. Removal of the applicant’s 
10.04 +/- acres will result in a 0.39% decrease in developable acres. 

 
Figure A 

The specific Jacks Branch DSAP Land Use for parcels in sections JB-51 (Figure A) is 
identified as Conservation Neighborhood with total dwelling unit development 
allowances assigned as follows: 
 
JB-51 section total development acreage 238.9 acres 
-low density x (0.1) yielding a total density of 23 dwelling units 



-medium density x (1) yielding a total density of 238 dwelling units 
-high density x (3) yielding a total density of 716 dwelling units 

 
Derived from the analysis of the baseline data we can identify the following trends: 
JB-51 section 
a. the applicant’s parcel area represents 0.11% of the total developable area.  
b. removal of the applicant’s 10.04 (+/-) acres from the total developable acreage for 
section JB-51, will result in a reduction of 30.12 total dwelling units under the high-
density allocation. 
 
This is the sixth Opting-Out request submitted to and processed by County staff. If 
approved, the total Sector Plan aggregate acreage will be 135.14. 
 
The original Sector Plan profile identified approximately 15,000 acres of land, the 
availability of infrastructure and public services and the protection of natural resources; 
the calculations used to complete the maximum development scenario for the Plan were 
specific and resulted in a balanced jobs-to-housing ratio. Changes to or variations of 
any of the original data used for the plan could hinder the balance and the viability of 
attaining the SP goals and objectives. 
Assuming a maximum theoretical buildout under the mixture of uses, the DSAP area 
would produce approximately 27,145 jobs. When analyzed using the maximum 
residential build-out of 23,000 dwelling units, the result, is a jobs-to- employed residents’ 
ratio of 1.19. It should be noted that although there is no single perfect ratio, an area is 
generally considered to be “balanced” if it has a jobs-to-housing ratio of roughly 0.8 to 
1.2. If the proposed amendment is approved the resulting job-to-housing ratio will be 
1.20. 

5. The existing transportation infrastructure and any effect the proposal may have 
on the capacity of that infrastructure. 
TTO Staff has reviewed the Sector Plan Opt-Out Case OSP-2020-01, 1400 Highway 
29(parcels 301N312203001001), agenda item for the Planning Board meeting 
scheduled for October 6, 2020. Please see the below comments. 
 

The property in question is located on the west side of Highway 29 North.  
Highway 29 North is a 4-lane divided roadway with 12-foot lanes.  The right-of-way is 
approximately 200 feet and the posted speed is 65 MPH. 

 
FDOT has no project listed for this section of Highway 29 N. in their five-year 

work program, FY 2021-2025.  Also, there are no on-going or programmed projects on 
Highway 29 N. showing in the County’s Capital Improvement Program (CIP).  

 
Per the TPO’s Congestion Management Process Plan, this section of Highway 

29 N. is classified as a rural arterial with a FDOT target daily vehicular capacity of 
41,790 (LOS D). The daily volume was recorded as 21,000 for 2019.  

 



TTO’s review is solely based off the application submittal packet, so the 
comments above hold no bearing on any future TTO comments during the Development 
Review process. 
 
6. The underlying zoning district and the compatibility with the surrounding DSAP 
Land Use designation. 

The existing parcel is currently zoned Low-Density residential (LDR). If removed from 
the SP, the following range of permitted uses are allowed under the existing zoning 
district:   
Sec. 3-2.5 Low Density Residential district (LDR).  
(a) Purpose. The Low Density Residential (LDR) district has a density of four dwellings 
units per acre.  The district establishes appropriate areas and land use regulations for 
residential uses at low densities within suburban areas. The primary intent of the district is 
to provide for large-lot suburban type residential neighborhood development that blends 
aspects of rural openness with the benefits of urban street connectivity, and at greater 
density than the Rural Residential district. Residential uses within the LDR district are 
predominantly detached single-family dwellings. Clustering dwellings on smaller residential 
lots may occur where needed to protect prime farmland from non-agricultural use or to 
conserve and protect environmentally sensitive areas. The district allows non-residential 
uses that are compatible with suburban residential neighborhoods and the natural 
resources of the area. 
(b) Permitted uses. Permitted uses within the LDR district are limited to the following:  

(1) Residential.  
a. Manufactured (mobile) homes only within existing manufactured home parks or 
subdivisions, or on land zoned SDD prior to adoption of LDR zoning. No new or 
expanded manufactured home parks or subdivisions.  
b. Single-family dwellings (other than manufactured homes), detached and only one 
per lot, excluding accessory dwellings. Accessory dwellings only on lots two acres or 
larger. Attached single-family dwellings and zero lot line subdivision only on land 
zoned V-5 or SDD prior to adoption of LDR zoning.  
c. Two-family dwellings and multi-family dwellings up to four units per dwelling 
(triplex and quadruplex) only on land zoned V-5 or SDD prior to adoption of LDR 
zoning. 
See also conditional uses in this district. 

(2) Retail sales. No retail sales.  
(3) Retail services. No retail services.  
(4) Public and civic. 

a. Cemeteries, family only.  
b. Public utility structures, excluding telecommunications towers. 
See also conditional uses in this district. 

(5) Recreation and entertainment.  
a. Marinas, private only.  
b. Parks without permanent restrooms or outdoor event lighting.  

See also conditional uses in this district.  
(6) Industrial and related. No industrial or related uses.  



(7) Agricultural and related. On land not zoned SDD prior to adoption of LDR zoning, 
agricultural production and storage is limited to food primarily for personal consumption 
by the producer. The following additional agricultural uses are allowed on lands zoned 
SDD prior to LDR zoning:  

a. Agriculture, but no farm animals except horses and other domesticated equines 
kept on site, and stables for such animals, accessory to a private residential use with 
a minimum lot area of two acres and a maximum of one animal per acre.  
b. Aquaculture, marine or freshwater.  
c. Produce display and sales of fruit, vegetables and similar agricultural products.  
d. Silviculture 
 

The Escambia County Land Development Code defines compatibility as a condition in 
which land uses, activities or conditions can coexist in relative proximity to each other in 
a stable fashion over time such that no use, activity, or condition is unduly negatively 
impacted directly or indirectly by another use, activity, or condition. The character and 
intensity of the LDR zoning district is compatible with the low densities in the 
Conservation Neighborhood.  
The DSAP Land Use for the surrounding parcels is strictly Conservation Neighborhood; 
based on the Residential Guidelines language, the Conservation Neighborhood Land 
Use is designed to allow clustered subdivisions of detached housing, with a maximum 
density of 3 dwellings units per net acre. 
 
7. The consistency of any requested Future Land Use designation with the 
underlying zoning. 
 
Should the Opt-Out be approved, and the MU-S Future Land Use category assigned, 
the most intense use will be dictated by the LDR zoning category, which allows for 
residential developments of 4 du/acre.  The requested MU-S FLU category will be 
consistent with the underlying zoning uses densities and intensities allowed by LDR. 
From the Escambia County 2030 Comprehensive Plan:  
 
FLUM Mixed-Use Suburban (MU-S) 
General Description: Intended for a mix of residential and non-residential uses while 
promoting compatible infill development and the separation of urban and suburban 
land uses. 
Range of Allowable Uses: Residential, retail sales & services, professional office, 
recreational facilities, public and civic, limited agriculture. 
Standards: 
Residential Maximum Density:  25 du/acre 
Non-Residential Minimum Intensity: None 
Maximum Intensity: 1.0 Floor Area Ratio (FAR) 
 
Escambia County intends to achieve the following mix of land uses for new 
development within ¼ mile of arterial roadways or transit corridors by 2030:  
a) Residential 8% to 25%  



b) Public/Rec/Inst. 5% to 20%  
c) Non-Residential:  
Retail Service-30% to 50%  
Office-25% to 50% 
 
In areas beyond ¼ mile of arterial roadways or transit corridors, the following mix of land 
uses is anticipated:  
a) Residential 70% to 85%  
b) Public/Rec/Inst. 10% to 25%  
c) Non-Residential 5% to 10% 
 
8. Previous FLU designation 
 
Prior to adoption of the DSAP, the FLU designation for this parcel was The Cottage 
Hill/Quintette Area (Area #15) which stated approximately 70 percent of the lands within 
the node shall remain in agricultural uses, 25 percent may be developed in residential 
uses and five percent may be developed in commercial or light industrial uses. The 
intensity of the nonresidential uses shall be defined by limiting the maximum amount of 
impervious surface to 82 percent and a floor area ratio of 1.1. 
 
9. Analysis to consider whether the applicant lost development rights or was 
effectively downzoned as part of the Sector Plan adoption. 
 
The vacant 10.04 (+/-) acre parcel had a FLU designation of Activity Area 15 (AA15).  
Table, 7-1 under Chapter 7 of the 2020 Comprehensive Plan, Policy 7.A.4.8: Rural 
Densities, established the density of residential uses in the agriculture, rural and activity 
area (nodes). The residential density, lot sizes, clustering, and size of proposed new 
subdivisions would have been governed by the table based on the location of proposed 
development site and its relationship to an activity node. Any development at that time 
would have been required to meet the design standards in the LDC or submit a 
proposal for development, however, there is no record that the property owner 
submitted a plan or received an approved Development Order, therefore there is no 
evidence that development rights were lost. 
 
Prior to the adoption of the Mid-West Escambia Sector Plan, the parcel was zoned 
Villages Rural Residential, VR-2   The Villages Rural Residential zoning districts where 
characterized by rural land development patterns, as stated in the previous zoning 
district of VR-2, in the prior LDC.  The VR-2 densities reflected the need for more 
affordable lot sizes for single family and mobile home development allowing for 1 du/.75 
acre.  Based on the available data, the residential density for the parcel were in-fact 
increased by the adoption of the Sector Plan and the assignment of the Conservation 
Neighborhood Land Use under the DSAP, which provides a maximum allowance of 3 
du/acre. 
If approved, any future development associated with this parcel will be evaluated during 
the Site Plan Review process. The review will utilize the current zoning regulations 



addressing and minimizing any potential impacts that the proposed development could 
have on the characteristics of the existing low to mid-density residential development 
listed under the SP’s Land Uses. 
If approved, the SP boundary map will be adjusted accordingly, to reflect the removal of 
the parcel from the Plan as shown in Attachment B. 
If approved the parcels will be assigned the Future Land Use Category of MU-S as 
shown in Attachment C. 



32 September 2011

¹º

nm

ïï

ïï

nm

ïï

ïï

22
!

!

!

!

!

§̈¦10

MUSCOGEE
DSAP

JACKS BRANCH
DSAP

!

!

!

!

N HW
Y 29

HWY 196

S 
H

IG
H

W
AY

 9
7

MUSCOGEE ROAD

JA
C

K
S 

B
R

A
N

C
H

 R
O

A
D

RI
VE

R 
A

NN
EX

 R
D

W KINGSFIELD ROAD

WELL LINE ROAD

QUINTETTE RD

SANTA
 ROSA ROAD

M-49

JB-52

M-57

JB-30

M-1

JB-29

M-29

M-20

JB-14

JB-1

M-42
M-15

JB-51

JB-8

JB-60

M-47

M-7

M-2

JB-22

M-27

M-6

JB-47

JB-2

M-44

M-21

JB-72

JB-43

JB-9

JB-41

JB-37

M-8

JB-12

JB-3

JB-48

M-26

JB-65

JB-71

JB-57

JB-33

JB-24

JB-31

JB-46JB-38

JB-10

JB-40

JB-58

JB-11

JB-32

JB-73

JB-39

M-28

JB-15

M-29

M-11

JB-36

JB-42

M-25

M-39

JB-21

M-56

M-37

M-9

JB-63JB-64

JB-56

M-35

M-52

JB-26

M-48

M-55

M-36

M-22

M-54

M-13

M-32

M-12

JB-55

JB-27

M-3

JB-4

JB-53

JB-23

M-30

JB-35

M-24

JB-62

JB-28

M-43

JB-75

JB-70

M-17

JB-69

JB-25

JB-16

M-31

M-18

JB-34

M-4
M-53

JB-59

M-5

M-45

M-41

JB-66
JB-68

JB-5

JB-6

M-50

JB-61

M-29

M-10

JB-74

M-34

JB-13

M-19

JB-7

JB-20

JB-67

M-38

M-23

JB-45

M-40

JB-19

JB-49

JB-18

JB-50

M-14

JB-17

JB-54

M-51

JB-44

M-29

M-46

M-16

Legend

DSAP Boundary

Regional Employment

Town Center

Village Center

Neighborhood Center

Traditional Village

Traditional Garden

Suburban Garden

Conservation Neighborhood

Public

Low-Impact Natural Resource Area

Conservation

Proposed Bee Line Corridor

Existing ROW

Proposed ROW

Railroad

nm Elementary / Middle School

¹º High School

ïï Community Park

22 Regional Park

Notes:
1.  Location and extent of Low-impact Natural Resource

Areas are approximate and subject to change pursuant
to permitting through the Northwest Florida Water
Management District.

2. Proposed roadway alignments are conceptual and subject
  to further refinement and permitting.

3. The Potential Beeline Corridor is conceptual in nature and
  not intended to depict a pre-determined alignment.

4. Public park and school sites have been preliminarily
located based upon calculated demand at build-out and
 proximity to population centers.  The specific location
and size of the identified sites are subject to approval by
the site owner and acquisition by the appropriate
governing authority and may change accordingly.  The
preliminary site locations shall not be construed as a
 requirement for the construction of parks and schools
on the identified sites or as otherwise prejudicing
the site owner's ability to develop the site.

Figure 2.01.A  Final Land Use Plan

jclemos
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT A

jclemos
Polygon

jclemos
Polygon



32 September 2011

¹º

nm

ïï

ïï

nm

ïï

ïï

22
!

!

!

!

!

§̈¦10

MUSCOGEE
DSAP

JACKS BRANCH
DSAP

!

!

!

!

N HW
Y 29

HWY 196

S 
H

IG
H

W
AY

 9
7

MUSCOGEE ROAD

JA
C

K
S 

B
R

A
N

C
H

 R
O

A
D

RI
VE

R 
A

NN
EX

 R
D

W KINGSFIELD ROAD

WELL LINE ROAD

QUINTETTE RD

SANTA
 ROSA ROAD

M-49

JB-52

M-57

JB-30

M-1

JB-29

M-29

M-20

JB-14

JB-1

M-42
M-15

JB-51

JB-8

JB-60

M-47

M-7

M-2

JB-22

M-27

M-6

JB-47

JB-2

M-44

M-21

JB-72

JB-43

JB-9

JB-41

JB-37

M-8

JB-12

JB-3

JB-48

M-26

JB-65

JB-71

JB-57

JB-33

JB-24

JB-31

JB-46JB-38

JB-10

JB-40

JB-58

JB-11

JB-32

JB-73

JB-39

M-28

JB-15

M-29

M-11

JB-36

JB-42

M-25

M-39

JB-21

M-56

M-37

M-9

JB-63JB-64

JB-56

M-35

M-52

JB-26

M-48

M-55

M-36

M-22

M-54

M-13

M-32

M-12

JB-55

JB-27

M-3

JB-4

JB-53

JB-23

M-30

JB-35

M-24

JB-62

JB-28

M-43

JB-75

JB-70

M-17

JB-69

JB-25

JB-16

M-31

M-18

JB-34

M-4
M-53

JB-59

M-5

M-45

M-41

JB-66
JB-68

JB-5

JB-6

M-50

JB-61

M-29

M-10

JB-74

M-34

JB-13

M-19

JB-7

JB-20

JB-67

M-38

M-23

JB-45

M-40

JB-19

JB-49

JB-18

JB-50

M-14

JB-17

JB-54

M-51

JB-44

M-29

M-46

M-16

Legend

DSAP Boundary

Regional Employment

Town Center

Village Center

Neighborhood Center

Traditional Village

Traditional Garden

Suburban Garden

Conservation Neighborhood

Public

Low-Impact Natural Resource Area

Conservation

Proposed Bee Line Corridor

Existing ROW

Proposed ROW

Railroad

nm Elementary / Middle School

¹º High School

ïï Community Park

22 Regional Park

Notes:
1.  Location and extent of Low-impact Natural Resource

Areas are approximate and subject to change pursuant
to permitting through the Northwest Florida Water
Management District.

2. Proposed roadway alignments are conceptual and subject
  to further refinement and permitting.

3. The Potential Beeline Corridor is conceptual in nature and
  not intended to depict a pre-determined alignment.

4. Public park and school sites have been preliminarily
located based upon calculated demand at build-out and
 proximity to population centers.  The specific location
and size of the identified sites are subject to approval by
the site owner and acquisition by the appropriate
governing authority and may change accordingly.  The
preliminary site locations shall not be construed as a
 requirement for the construction of parks and schools
on the identified sites or as otherwise prejudicing
the site owner's ability to develop the site.

Figure 2.01.A  Final Land Use Plan

jclemos
Rectangle

jclemos
Polygon

jclemos
Polygon

jclemos
Pencil

jclemos
Pencil

jclemos
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT B



¬«Conservation
Neighborhood

¬«Wetland

¬«Conservation
Neighborhood

COOLEY

HIGHWAY 29

PIN
E T

OP

NEAL

HIGHWAY 29

FDOT

0 400 800200
Feet

OSP-2020-01 Proposed FLU
MU-S

This map was prepared by 
Escambia County Development Services 
provided for information purposes only. 
The data is not guaranteed accurate 
or suitable for any use other
than that for which it was gathered. 
User: jclemos
Date: 9/10/2020

MU-S

ATTACHMENT C



3363 WEST PARK PLACE • PENSACOLA, FLORIDA  32505 • 850-595-3404 • 850-595-3405 (FAX) 

 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:  Andrew Holmer, Division Manager 
Development Services Department 

 
FROM: Terri V. Malone, AICP, Transportation Planner 
  Transportation & Traffic Operations Division 
 
DATE: September 24, 2020 
 
RE: Transportation & Traffic Operations (TTO) Comments – OSP-2020-01 
 

TTO Staff has reviewed the Sector Plan Opt-Out Case OSP-2020-01 1400 
Highway 29 North, agenda item for the Planning Board meeting scheduled for October 
6, 2020. Please see the below comments. 

 
The property in question is located on the west side of Highway 29 North.  

Highway 29 North is a 4-lane divided roadway with 12-foot lanes.  The right-of-way is 
approximately 200 feet and the posted speed is 65 MPH. 

 
FDOT has no project listed for this section of Highway 29 N. in their five-year 

work program, FY 2021-2025.  Also, there are no on-going or programmed projects on 
Highway 29 N. showing in the County’s Capital Improvement Program (CIP).  

 
Per the TPO’s Congestion Management Process Plan, this section of Highway 

29 N. is classified as a rural arterial with a FDOT target daily vehicular capacity of 
41,790 (LOS D). The daily volume was recorded as 21,000 for 2019.  

 
TTO’s review is solely based off the application submittal packet, so the 

comments above hold no bearing on any future TTO comments during the Development 
Review process. 

  
cc: Horace Jones, Development Services Department Director 

Joy Jones, P.E., Engineering Department Director 
Christine Fanchi, P.E., Transportation Engineer 

 John C. Fisher, Development Services Department 



LEGAL REVIEW

(COUNTY DEPARTMENT USE ONLY)

Document:                                                                                 

Date:                                                                                                 

Date requested back by:                                                 

Requested by:                                                                                  

Phone Number:                                                                                

(LEGAL USE ONLY)

Legal Review by                                                                              

Date Received:                                               

Approved as to form and legal sufficiency.

Not approved.

Make subject to legal signoff.

Additional comments:



PB:10-06-20 
BCC: 11-10-20 
Re: Opt-Out 2020-01 
Draft: legally sufficient 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2020-___1
2

AN ORDINANCE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE 3
ESCAMBIA COUNTY MID-WEST SECTOR PLAN, FINAL LAND USE 4
PLAN, FIGURE 2.01.A, REMOVING A PARCEL WITHIN SECTION 03, 5
TOWNSHIP 1N, RANGE 31W, PARCEL NUMBER 1302-000-0016
TOTALING 10.05 (+/-) ACRES, LOCATED ON N. HIGHWAY 29, FROM 7
THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY MID-WEST SECTOR PLAN; FURTHER 8
AMENDING PART II OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE OF 9
ORDINANCES, THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 10
2030, AS AMENDED; AMENDING CHAPTER 7, “THE FUTURE LAND 11
USE ELEMENT,” POLICY FLU 1.1.1, TO PROVIDE FOR AN 12
AMENDMENT TO THE  2030 FUTURE LAND USE MAP, ASSIGNING A 13
FUTURE LAND USE CATEGORY TO A PARCEL WITHIN SECTION 03, 14
TOWNSHIP 1N, RANGE 31W, PARCEL NUMBER 1302-000-001 15
TOTALING 10.05 (+/-) ACRES, OF MIXED USE SUBURBAN (MU-S); 16
PROVIDING FOR A TITLE; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 17
PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 18
EFFECTIVE DATE. 19

 20
 21
WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 163, Part II, Florida Statutes, Escambia County adopted 22
its Comprehensive Plan on April 29, 2014; and  23

24
WHEREAS, Chapter 16, FLU 16.6.1.V of the Escambia County Comprehensive Plan 25
provides guidelines for removing properties from an approved DSAP; and26

27
WHEREAS, the Escambia County Planning Board conducted a public hearing and 28
forwarded a recommendation to the Board of County Commissioners to consider changes 29
(amendments) to the boundaries of the Escambia County Mid-West Sector Plan, Final 30
Land Use Plan Map, Figure 2.01.A, Attachment “A;” and31

32
WHEREAS, Chapter 125, Florida Statutes, empowers the Board of County 33
Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida to prepare, amend and enforce 34
comprehensive plans for the development of the County; and 35

36
WHEREAS, the Escambia County Planning Board conducted a public hearing and 37
forwarded a recommendation to the Board of County Commissioners to consider changes 38
(amendments) to the Comprehensive Plan; and 39

40
WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida finds that 41
the adoption of this amendment is in the best interest of the County and its citizens;  42

43



PB:10-06-20 
BCC: 11-10-20 
Re: Opt-Out 2020-01 
Draft: legally sufficient 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of County Commissioners of 1
Escambia County, Florida, as follows:2

3
Section 1. Purpose and Intent4

5
This Ordinance is enacted to carry out the purpose and intent of, and exercise the 6
authority set out in, the Community Planning Act, Sections 163.3161 through 163.3215, 7
Florida Statutes.8

9
Section 2. Title of Map Amendment10

11
This Final Land Use Plan Map amendment shall be entitled – "Opting-Out Escambia 12
County Mid-West Sector Plan OSP 2020-01." 13

14
Section 3. Changes to the Final Land Use Plan 15

16
The Final Land Use Plan (Figure 2.01.A) as adopted in the Escambia County Mid-West 17
Sector Plan, Land Use Plan and Development Program, and all notations, references and 18
information shown thereon, is further amended to remove the following parcel: 19

20
A parcel within Section 03, Township 1N, Range 31W, parcel number 1302-21
000-001 and totaling 10.05 (+/-) acres, located on N. Highway 29.  22

The amended Final Land Use Plan Map boundary is reflected in Attachment “B.” 23

24
Section 4. Title of Comprehensive Plan Amendment 25

26
This Comprehensive Plan amendment shall be entitled – "Opting-Out Escambia County 27
Mid-West Sector Plan OSP 2020-01." 28

29
Section 5. Changes to the 2030 Future Land Use Map30

31
The 2030 Future Land Use Map, as adopted by reference and codified in Part II of the 32
Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Escambia County Comprehensive Plan: 2030, 33
as amended; Chapter 7, "Future Land Use Element," Policy FLU 1.1.1; and all notations, 34
references and information shown thereon, is further amended to include the following 35
future land use changes:36

37
A parcel within Section 03, Township 1N, Range 31W, parcel number 1321-38
000-001 and totaling 10.05 (+/-) acres, located on N. Highway 29, included as 39
Attachment “C,” assigning a FLU of Mixed-Use Suburban (MU-S).  40

41
42
43



PB:10-06-20 
BCC: 11-10-20 
Re: Opt-Out 2020-01 
Draft: legally sufficient 

Section 6.     Severability1 
2 

If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be invalid or 3 
unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, the holding shall in no way affect 4 
the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance.5 

6 
Section 7. Effective Date7 

8 
Pursuant to Section 163.3184(3)(c)(4), Florida Statutes, this Ordinance shall not become 9 
effective until 31 days after the Department of Economic Opportunity notifies Escambia 10 
County that the plan amendment package is complete.  If timely challenged, this 11 
Ordinance shall not become effective until the Department of Economic Opportunity or 12 
the Administration Commission enters a final order determining the Ordinance to be in 13 
compliance.  14 

15 
DONE AND ENACTED this_____ day of ______________, 2020. 16 

17 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS18 

OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 19 
20 
21 

By: _________________________________ 22 
Steven Barry, Chairman 23 

24 
ATTEST: PAM CHILDERS25 

CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT26 
27 
28 

By: ___________________________   29 
Deputy Clerk 30 

(SEAL) 31 
32 
33 

ENACTED:34 
FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE:35 
EFFECTIVE DATE: 36 



32 September 2011

10

MUSCOGEE
DSAP

JACKS BRANCH
DSAP

HWY 196

MUSCOGEE ROAD

WELL LINE ROAD

QUINTETTE RD

M-49

JB-52

M-57

JB-30

M-1

JB-29

M-29

M-20

JB-14

JB-1

M-42
M-15

JB-51

JB-8

JB-60

M-47

M-7

M-2

JB-22

M-27

M-6

JB-47

JB-2

M-44

M-21

JB-72

JB-43

JB-9

JB-41

JB-37

M-8

JB-12

JB-3

JB-48

M-26

JB-65

JB-71

JB-57

JB-33

JB-24

JB-31

JB-46JB-38

JB-10

JB-40

JB-58

JB-11

JB-32

JB-73

JB-39

M-28

JB-15

M-29

M-11

JB-36

JB-42

M-25

M-39

JB-21

M-56

M-37

M-9

JB-63JB-64

JB-56

M-35

M-52

JB-26

M-48

M-55

M-36

M-22

M-54

M-13

M-32

M-12

JB-55

JB-27

M-3

JB-4

JB-53

JB-23

M-30

JB-35

M-24

JB-62

JB-28

M-43

JB-75

JB-70

M-17

JB-69

JB-25

JB-16

M-31

M-18

JB-34

M-4

M-53

JB-59

M-5

M-45

M-41

JB-66
JB-68

JB-5

JB-6

M-50

JB-61

M-29

M-10

JB-74

M-34

JB-13

M-19

JB-7

JB-20

JB-67

M-38

M-23

JB-45

M-40

JB-19

JB-49

JB-18

JB-50

M-14

JB-17

JB-54

M-51

JB-44

M-29

M-46

M-16

Legend

DSAP Boundary

Regional Employment

Town Center

Village Center

Neighborhood Center

Traditional Village

Traditional Garden

Suburban Garden

Conservation Neighborhood

Public

Low-Impact Natural Resource Area

Conservation

Proposed Bee Line Corridor

Existing ROW

Proposed ROW

Railroad

Elementary / Middle School

High School

Community Park

Regional Park

Notes:
1.  Location and extent of Low-impact Natural Resource

Areas are approximate and subject to change pursuant
to permitting through the Northwest Florida Water
Management District.

2. Proposed roadway alignments are conceptual and subject
  to further refinement and permitting.

3. The Potential Beeline Corridor is conceptual in nature and
  not intended to depict a pre-determined alignment.

4. Public park and school sites have been preliminarily
located based upon calculated demand at build-out and
 proximity to population centers.  The specific location
and size of the identified sites are subject to approval by
the site owner and acquisition by the appropriate
governing authority and may change accordingly.  The
preliminary site locations shall not be construed as a
 requirement for the construction of parks and schools
on the identified sites or as otherwise prejudicing
the site owner's ability to develop the site.

Figure 2.01.A  Final Land Use Plan



32 September 2011

DSAP Boundary

Regional Employment

Town Center

Village Center

Neighborhood Center

Traditional Village

Traditional Garden

Suburban Garden

Conservation Neighborhood

Public

Low-Impact Natural Resource Area

Conservation

Proposed Bee Line Corridor

Existing ROW

Proposed ROW

Railroad

Elementary / Middle School

High School

Community Park

Regional Park

Notes:
1.  Location and extent of Low-impact Natural Resource

Areas are approximate and subject to change pursuant
to permitting through the Northwest Florida Water
Management District.

2. Proposed roadway alignments are conceptual and subject
  to further refinement and permitting.

3. The Potential Beeline Corridor is conceptual in nature and
  not intended to depict a pre-determined alignment.

4. Public park and school sites have been preliminarily
located based upon calculated demand at build-out and
 proximity to population centers.  The specific location
and size of the identified sites are subject to approval by
the site owner and acquisition by the appropriate
governing authority and may change accordingly.  The
preliminary site locations shall not be construed as a
 requirement for the construction of parks and schools
on the identified sites or as otherwise prejudicing
the site owner's ability to develop the site.

Figure 2.01.A  Final Land Use Plan



¬«Conservation
Neighborhood

¬«Wetland

¬«Conservation
Neighborhood

NEAL

FDOT

0 400 800200

Feet

OSP-2020-01 Proposed FLU
MU-S

This map was prepared by 
Escambia County Development Services 
provided for information purposes only. 
The data is not guaranteed accurate 
or suitable for any use other
than that for which it was gathered. 
User: jclemos
Date: 9/10/2020

MU-S



   
Planning Board-Regular   6. B.           
Meeting Date: 10/06/2020  
CASE : OSP-2020-02
APPLICANT: Buddy Page, Agent for Cleveland R. Campbell, Sr, Owner 

ADDRESS: 1000 BLK Pine Top Lane 
PROPERTY REF. NO.: 03-1N-31-3401-000-000  
FUTURE LAND USE: Conservation Neighborhood (Jacks Branch DSAP)  
ZONING DISTRICT: Low Density Residential district (LDR)   
DSAP LAND USE : Conservation Neighborhood (Jacks Branch DSAP) 

BCC MEETING DATE: 11/05/2020 

SUBMISSION DATA:
REQUEST:
The applicant is requesting to remove parcel from the Mid-West Escambia County
Sector Plan, Jacks Branch Detailed Specific Area Plan (DSAP), and also requesting
assignment of a Future Land Use category of Mixed-Use Suburban (MU-S).

RELEVANT AUTHORITY:

(1) Escambia County Comprehensive Plan: Chapter 16, FLU 16.6.1.V

BACKGROUND
The applicant is requesting to remove the parcel from the adopted Escambia County
Mid-West Sector Plan (SP), Jacks Branch Detailed Specific Area Plan (DSAP). The
subject parcel is located on the corner of Well Line Road and Pine Top Lane.

Based on the public records of Escambia County, the Escambia County Property
Appraiser, there is NON-AG acreage on-site. The current underlying zoning for the
parcel is LDR, with a maximum residential development allowance of 4 du/acre.
The applicant is also requesting that the BOCC assign a Future Land Use (FLU)
category of MU-S. The applicant stated that there is no immediate proposed
development for the sites.

The existing Land Use derived from the adopted DSAP Final Land Use Plan, identifies
the parcel under the Conservation Neighborhood designation, with a maximum
residential development allowance of 3 du/acre.

EVALUATION AND ANALYSIS

Attachments
Working Case File



Draft Ordinance with Attachments



 
  

 

 

 

 

OSP-2020-02 
 



M USCOGEE RD

SANTA ROSA RD

NO
W

AK
RD

W ASHINGTONST
RO

CK
Y

A V
E

CHIPPEN DALERD

MORRIS AV E

TATE
RD

N HIGHWAY 29

CEDAR TREE LN

NEAL RD

N
HIGHW

AY
29

L

AKEVI E W
AVE

HI
LL

O C
K

DR

CO
N

N IE W
AY

W ELL
LINE RD

BOOKER ST

JONAH
ST

N
HI

GH
W

AY
95

A

R

OBI NSON ST

AN
DA

LU
SIA

 R
D

SILVERRIDGEDR

VI
RE

C E
NT

RD

MO
NR

OE
A V

E

WOODBURY

CIR

WILLIAMS DITCH RD

PINE ST
MINTZLN

BECKS LAKE RD

LINCOLN
ST

IS ABELLA RD

SHAYTRL

JA CKS

BR
ANCH R D

W
 P

LA
ZA

RD
WELL

LINE RD

S
HIGHWAY 97

EDEN LN

KITTRELL
ST

GR
EE

N
TR

EE
 C

IR GASTON LN S
HIGHW

AY
29

S
HIGHW

AY
29

COTTAG E

HILL RD

BIBBSRD

TA
LL

EY LN

UPLAND RD

S
HIGHW

AY
95A

MA
DR

ID
 R

D
MA

DR
ID

 R
D

JACO
B SW

AY

CEDAR
TREE LN

CROWNDALE
CT

TA YLOR ST

PH
AL

RO
SE

 LN

CE
DA

R
PA

RK
 D

R

CANDY
LN

BA
LB

OA
 R

D

C
O OPER

R

D

SAN

CARLOS RD JE
SS

E
DR

PA
RA

LL
EL

 R
D

COOLEY
RD

TW IN P INES CIR
HI

CKS ST

VI
RE

CE
NT

 R
D

P I
NE

T O
P

L N

P IN
EY

LN

GA
IN

EY
 LN

DAYLILY
RD

SANTA

ROSA RD

GREENBER

RY
DR

BRITT RD

CHESAPEAKE

TRL

STON E BLVD

FA
R G

O
RD

BENJULYN RD

HIGHWAY
297A

CL

YMIL DR

RIDGE W AY

COUNTRI LN

PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 2,000 4,000 6,000

Ft

OSP-2020-02
LOCATION MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
John C Fisher



SANTA ROSA RD

RO
CK

Y
AV

E

MORRIS AVE

N HIGHWAY 29

WELL

LINE RD

JACOB S
W

A Y

NEAL RD

FORREST ST
LAKEVIEW AVE

WELL LINE RD

E 
PL

AZ
A

RD

HI
LL

OC
K

DR

HESED CT MAPLE ST

MO
NR

OE
AV

E

ROCKY LN

PA
CE

 P
KW

Y

M INTZ LN
ROBINSON ST

BO
OT

H
AV

E

W
EG

NE
R 

AV
E

BO
OT

H 
AV

E

ROSE
PETAL LN

E PA
RK

L

N

N
HIGHWAY 29

BELMONT
AVE W

AT
SO

N
AV

E

HO
M E

LA
ND

AVE

CO
UL

TE
R

AV
E

CO
UL

TE
RA

VE

RI
DG

E
W

AY

TA
L L

EY LN H
AR VEST

HILL

DR

PH
AL

RO
SE

LN

PERDIDO RD JACOB S
W AY

ISABELLA RD

BROOKHI LLS
DR

VAUGHN ST

DESOTO RD

BA
LB

OA
 R

D JE SSE
DR

FOREHAND

LN

JAC OB S

W

AY

PI
NE

 T
OP

 LN

KNOLLW OOD DR

N
HI

GH
W

AY
95

A

Agr

Pub

Rec

MDR

HC/LI

LDR

PARCELS
2500 FT Buffer
500 FT Buffer
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 910 1,820 2,730

Ft

OSP-2020-02
500' & 2500' RADIUS ZONING

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
John C Fisher

LDR

MDR

LDR MDR



SANTA ROSA RD

MORRIS
AV E

JACOB S
W

A Y

JA
CO

BS WAY FORREST ST

OAK
ST

LA

KEVIEW

AVE

BROOKHILLS
DR

HI
LL

OC
K 

DR

WELL LINE RD

RI
DG

E
W

AY

ES
CA

MB
IA

AV
EHESED CT MAPLE

ST

MAGNOLIA
AVE

MO
NR

OE
 A

VE

VAUGHN
ST

BO
OT

H
AV

E

W OODLAND ST

PERDIDO RD

ROSE
PETAL LN

BELMONT
AVE

W
AT

SO
N

AV
E

CO
UL

TE
R

AV
E

COUL
TE

R
AV

E

TA
LL

EY LN HARV
EST H I LL DR

NEAL RD

BROOKHILLS
DR

JE S S E DR

FOREHA

N D LN
N

HIGHWAY 29
N

HIGHWAY
29

PI
NE

 T
OP

 LN

KNOLLW OOD DR

Conservation
Neighborhood

Wetland

Suburban
Garden

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 660 1,320 1,980

Ft

OSP-2020-02
EXISTING FLU/DSAP MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
John C Fisher

MU-S

MU-S

MU-S

REC

CONSERVATION
NEIGHBORHOOD

C



JA
COBS WAY

WOODLAND
ST

JACOB S
W

A Y WELL LINE RD

FORREST ST

OAK
STLAKEVIEW AVE

LAKEVIEW
AVE

MORRIS AVE

ES
CA

MB
IA

 A
VE

HESED
CT

COULTER
AVE

ROSE
PETAL LN

BELMONT AVE W
AT

SO
N 

AV
ESANTA

ROSA RD

TA
LL

EY LN

FOREH
A N D LN

N
HIGHWAY 29

KNOLLW OOD DR

J ES SE DR

PI
NE

 T
OP

 LNConservation
Neighborhood

Wetland

ConservationNeighborhood
Wetland

ConservationNeighborhoodWetland

WetlandConservation
Neighborhood

W
etl

an
d

SuburbanGarden

Wetland
Conservation

Neighborhood
PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 500 1,000 1,500

Ft

OSP-2020-02
PROP FLU/DSAP MAP 

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
John C Fisher

REC
MU-S

MU-SMU-S

MU-S

CONSERVATION
NEIGHBORHOOD



JA
COBS WAY

WOODLAND
ST

JACOB S
W

AY WELL LINE RD

FORREST ST

OAK
STLAKEVIE W AVE LAKEVIEW

AVE

MORRIS AVE

BROOKHILLS
DR

ES
CA

MB
IA

 A
VE

HESED
CT

COULTER
AVE

ROSE
PETAL LN

BELMONT AVE W
AT

SO
N 

AV
ESANTA

ROSA RD

TA
LLEY LN

FOREH A ND LN

N HIGHWAY 29
N HIGHWAY 29

KNOLLW OOD DR

BROOKHILLS
DR

JES S E DR

PI
NE

 T
OP

 LN

FDOT

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 500 1,000 1,500

Ft

OSP-2020-02
AERIAL MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
John C Fisher



PUBLIC HEARING SIGN



LOOKING EAST ALONG WELL LINE ROAD



LOOKING NORTH ACROSS WELL LINE ROAD AT SUBJECT PROPERTY



LOOKING NORTHWEST ACROSS WELL LINE ROAD AT SUBJECT PROPERTY



LOOKING WEST ALONG WELL LINE ROAD



LOOKING NORTH ALONG PINE TOP LANE



LOOKING SOUTH AT THE CORNER OF PINE TOP LANE AND WELL LINE ROAD



LOOKING NORTH ALONG PINE TOP LANE



LOOKING WEST ALONG WELL LINE ROAD AT CORNER OF PINE TOP LANE



































POLICIES FLU 1.5.1 New Development and Redevelopment 

in Built Areas. To promote the efficient use of existing public 

roads, utilities, and service infrastructure, the County will encourage 

the redevelopment in underutilized properties to maximize 

development densities and intensities located in the MU-5, MU-U, 

Commercial, and Industrial Future Land Use categories (with the 

exception of residential development). 

OBJ FLU 2.1 Urban Development Direct growth toward those 

areas where infrastructure and services exist to support 

development at approved densities and intensities. 

RESPONSE: This site will have all necessary infrastructure and 

services necessary to support uses allowed in the MU-U Future Land 

Use Category. 

POLICIES FLU 2.1.1 Infrastructure Capacities. Urban uses 

will be concentrated in the urbanized areas with the most intense 

development permitted in the Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U) areas and 

areas with sufficient central water and sewer system capacity to 

accommodate higher density development. Land use densities may 

be increased through Comprehensive Plan amendments. This policy 

is intended to direct higher density urban uses to those areas with 

infrastructure capacities sufficient to meet demands and to those 

areas with capacities in excess of current or projected demand. 

Septic systems remain allowed through Florida Health Department . 

jclemos
Typewritten Text
MU-S REQUESTED







jclemos
Typewritten Text
NOT A FLU CHANGE BUT AN ASSIGNMENT OF FLU































Comprehensive Plan  
Removal of Parcel from the Optional Sector Plan (amending map) 

and assignment of a new Future Land Use Category  
Staff Analysis  

 
General Data 
 
Project Name:  OSP 2020-02 
Location:  1000 BLK Pine Top Lane    
Parcel #s:  03-1N-31-3401-000-000    
Acreage:  19.34 (+/-) acres 
Request:  Opt-out of the Sector Plan and assign Future Land Use category 
Current Zoning:  Low Density Residential district (LDR)  
Future Land Use Requested:   Mixed Use Suburban (MU-S)   
DSAP Land Use:  Conservation Neighborhood (Jacks Branch DSAP)  
Applicant:  Todd Stafford, Agent for Cleveland R. Campbell, Sr, Owner 
Meeting Dates: Planning Board: October 6, 2020 
   BCC: November 5, 2020 
 
 
Site Description and Summary of Proposed Amendment: 
 
The property owner is requesting a parcel be removed from the Escambia County Mid-
West Sector Plan (SP), in the Jacks Branch Detailed Specific Area Plan (DSAP).   
Within the DSAP, the existing land use for the parcels is Conservation Neighborhood 
with a maximum residential density of 3 du/acre. 
 
The applicant’s request is to assign a Future Land Use (FLU) designation of Mixed-Use 
Suburban (MU-S) to the parcel with no future development proposed at this time. 
 
According to the Escambia County Property Appraiser, the parcel is Non-AG Acreage, 
with total 19.34 +/- acres. 
 
Standard Map Amendment Criteria 
 
1. Availability of Facilities and Services: 
The availability of public facilities and services are necessary to accommodate existing 
and future development, to promote orderly growth within areas best suited to 
accommodate development, protect sensitive natural resource systems and rural and 
agricultural areas. All level of service (LOS) standards are evaluated for compliance 



during the review processes stated in the Land Development Code (LDC) for proposed 
development. 
 
A. Sanitary Sewer 
Ensure the safe and efficient provision of wastewater services through 
coordination with service providers, maximized use of existing facilities, 
maintenance of appropriate levels of service, correction of existing deficiencies, 
and protection of natural resources. 
 
CP Policy INF 1.1.7 Level of Service (LOS) Standards. Average LOS standard for 
wastewater service is 210 gallons per residential connection per day, and the peak LOS 
will be 350 gallons per residential connection per day. For nonresidential uses, the LOS 
requirements will be based upon an Equivalent Residential Connection (ERC), as may 
be recalculated by the service provider from time to time, and on the size of the 
nonresidential water meter. Escambia County will continue to work with the water 
providers to ensure that adequate capacity is available. 
 
CP Policy INF 1.1.11 Required New Service Connection. All new structures intended 
for human occupancy will connect to the ECUA wastewater system unless ECUA has 
determined that it is not feasible to provide wastewater service to the proposed 
structures. Those structures not required to connect to the ECUA wastewater system 
will not be issued a building permit until the applicant has obtained the appropriate 
permit from the Health Department. 
 
B. Solid Waste Disposal 
Ensure the safe and efficient provision of solid waste services through 
coordination with service providers, maximized use of existing landfill facilities, 
maintenance of appropriate levels of service, promotion of recycling and reuse, 
and protection of natural resources. 
 
CP Policy INF 2.1.2 Perdido Landfill Operation. Escambia County will provide and 
operate the Perdido Landfill so as to accommodate the municipal solid waste disposal  
needs of the entire County. 
 
CP Policy INF 2.1.4 Level of Service (LOS) Standards. The LOS standard for solid 
waste disposal will be 6 pounds per capita per day. 
 
C. Potable Water 
Ensure the safe and efficient provision of potable water services through 
coordination with service providers, maximized use of existing facilities, 
maintenance of appropriate levels of service, correction of existing deficiencies, 
water conservation, and protection of natural resources. 
 
CP Policy INF 4.1.1 Service Agreements. Potable water service will be provided at 
established levels of service within Escambia County consistent with the Interlocal 



Agreement between the County and ECUA, the Escambia County Utilities Authority 
Act, and franchise agreements between Escambia County and other water service 
providers that were in operation on August 1, 1981. 
 

CP Policy INF 4.1.6 Developer Responsibility.  The cost of water line extensions 
made necessary by new development will be the responsibility of the developer 
unless otherwise funded by the service provider. 
 
CP Policy INF 4.1.7 Level of Service (LOS) Standards. The LOS standard for 
potable water service within Escambia County will be 250 gallons per residential 
connection per day. For non-residential uses, the LOS requirements will be based 
upon an Equivalent Residential Connection (ERC) to be calculated by the service 
provider at the time of application. Escambia County will continue to work with the 
water providers to ensure that adequate capacity is available. 
 
Analysis: As shown in the tables in Section 4.03, Potable Water, of the Mid West 
Sector Plan document, an analysis was done to determine the infrastructure needed 
to support development within the DSAP area. Potable water for this area in the DSAP 
is supplied by Cottage Hill Water Works, Inc. The level of service (LOS) for potable 
water within Escambia County is 250 gallons per residential connection per day and 
the non-residential uses are based on equivalent residential connection to be 
calculated by the service provider at the time of application.  Wastewater is supplied to 
the region by Emerald Coast Utilities Authority with the LOS standards within 
Escambia County being 210 gallons per residential connection per day, and the non-
residential uses are calculated by the service prover at the time of application.  Solid 
waste service LOS is 6 pounds per capita per day.  Potable water was analyzed for 
both the five year and the buildout development programs. A conceptual potable water 
distribution system was developed based upon this analysis and is available in Figure 
4.03A of the DSAP document.  Funding for any expansion or improvements to the 
potable distribution and water treatment systems within a service area are typically 
generated by the respective Utility Authority.  
At the time of submittal, the applicant’s analysis documented that there is no 
development proposed at this time, however all the LOS standards for sanitary sewer, 
potable water, and waste disposal must be identified and reviewed for any proposed 
development. 
 
D. Stormwater Management 
Ensure the safe and efficient provision of stormwater management through 
maximized use of existing facilities, maintenance of appropriate levels of service, 
correction of existing deficiencies, and protection of natural resources. 
 
CP Policy INF 3.1.5 Concurrency Management.  Escambia County will ensure the 
provision of stormwater management facilities concurrent with the demand for such 
facilities as created by development or redevelopment through implementation of the 
Concurrency Management System. 
 



CP Policy INF 3.1.6 Developer Responsibilities.  Installation of stormwater 
management facilities made necessary by new development will be the responsibility 
of the developer. 
 
CP Policy CON 1.3.1 Stormwater Management. Escambia County will protect 
surface water quality by implementing the stormwater management policies of the 
Infrastructure Element to improve existing stormwater management systems and 
ensure the provision of stormwater management facilities concurrent with the demand 
for such facilities. 
 
Analysis: Based on the DSAP’s original analysis for stormwater in areas of the Sector 
Plan, stormwater systems should be developed as regional systems and encompass 
multiple areas of development.  Attempts should be made to design stormwater 
treatment and attenuation systems and supporting conveyance pipes and swales as 
complete systems. All developments are required to meet or exceed the standards 
established by the Northwest Florida Water Management District (NWFWMD).  
The applicant stated that there is no proposed development at this time. Compliance 
with adopted stormwater management provisions will be reviewed and confirmed prior 
to any site development plan approval.  
 
E. Traffic 
Continue to provide a safe, convenient, efficient, and cost-effective multimodal 
transportation system and roadway network for present and future residents. 
 
CP Policy MOB 1.1.1 Level of Service (LOS) Standards. Levels of Service (LOS) will 
be used to evaluate facility capacity.  Escambia County will adopt LOS standards for all 
roadways as indicated in the LDC. The standards for Strategic Intermodal System (SIS) 
facilities may be revised based on changes to the federal classification of these 
roadways. These standards are not regulatory but provide a basis by which the County 
may monitor congestion and coordinate needed improvements with FDOT. 
 
CP Policy MOB 1.1.2 On-site Facilities. All new private development will be required 
to provide safe and convenient on-site traffic flow as indicated in the LDC. 

 
MOB 1.1.7 Access Management. Escambia County will promote access management 
by limiting the number of conflict points that a motorist experiences during travel, 
separating conflict points as much as possible when they cannot be eliminated, and 
controlling the turning movements to facilitate traffic flow on affected roadways. 
 
Analysis: Based on Section 4.02 in the Public Facilities Plan under the Midwest Sector 
Plan, a transportation analysis was conducted on different roadways and segments 
evaluating the existing facilities and travel characteristics as well as the potential 
impacts and road capacity needs for the five year interim period and the buildout of the 
plan. A review of the area shows that various transportation improvements are planned 



near the DSAP, including capacity expansions of US 29, Interstate 10, and Nine Mile 
Road.  
The County’s Traffic and Transportation department has provided comments. 
At the time of submittal, the applicant stated there is no proposed development for this 
parcel. Any development application will require submittal, review, and approval thru the 
Site Plan Review process, meeting all the requirements of the LDC and Comprehensive 
Plan. 
 
F. Recreation and Open Space 
The purpose of the Recreation and Open Space Element is to ensure adequate 
recreational opportunities for the citizens of Escambia County through the provision 
of a comprehensive system of public and private park facilities. These facilities may 
include, but are not limited to, natural reservations, parks and playgrounds, trails, 
beaches and public access to beaches, open spaces, and waterways. 
 
Analysis:   Conservation Neighborhoods are intended to provide a more efficient and 
environmentally protective development pattern.  As per Mid-West Sector Plan, Section 
3.03, Conservation Neighborhood Guidelines, Open Space, the intent is to be low 
density, clustered communities with an interconnected open space that will serve to 
protect and preserve areas of significant natural resources and wildlife habitat while 
offering passive recreational opportunities to residents.  Parks and recreational facilities 
within a neighborhood will promote physical activity as well as adding to the overall 
value of the area. 
The applicant stated that there is no proposed development for the parcel, however, any 
future development must go through the Development Review process and meet all 
standards for Recreation and Open Space in the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
G. Public School Facilities 
CP Policy ICE 1.1.2 Interlocal Agreements. Escambia County will implement adopted 
interlocal agreements with the Escambia County School Board, the City of Milton, the 
City of Pensacola, the City of Gulf Breeze, and Santa Rosa County so as to provide for 
coordination and evaluation of development proposals that affect the bays, bayous, 
sound, or gulf (including estuaries and estuarine systems). 
 
Analysis: As per the Sector Plan, Section 4.08, for Schools, an analysis was completed 
for the purposes of estimating DSAP impacts for both the five year and buildout 
conditions. Based on the public records of Escambia County, the assigned schools that 
service the area are Jim Allen, Ransom and Tate.  The school district staff is part of the 
Site Plan Review process having the ability to comment on all proposed projects in 
Escambia County.  The applicant stated there are no plans to develop and although any 
increase in density may or may not have an influence on student population, the exact 
number of students cannot be calculated until a plan is submitted thru the Site Plan 
Review process. 
 
 



2. Impact on Natural Resources 
 
A. Wellheads 
CP Policy CON 1.4.1 Wellhead Protection. Escambia County will provide 
comprehensive wellhead protection from potential adverse impacts to current and 
future public water supplies. The provisions will establish specific wellhead protection 
areas and address incompatible land uses, including prohibited activities and materials, 
within those areas. 
 

Analysis: Based on the Geographical Information System (GIS) layer, the subject 
parcel is not located in a wellhead protection area.   
 
B. Historically Significant Sites  
CP Policy FLU 1.2.1 State Assistance.  Escambia County will utilize all available 
resources of the Florida Department of State, Division of Historical Resources in the 
identification of archeological and/or historic sites or structures within the County and will 
utilize guidance, direction, and technical assistance received from this agency. 
 
Analysis: The applicant provided documentation stating there are no previously 
recorded historical resources within the parcel.  The Escambia County Comprehensive 
Plan has a section for historical preservation and at any time during development if 
artifacts are discovered, they are to cease construction under policy OBJ FLU 1.2 
Historic Resources, in the Escambia County Comprehensive Plan.   
 
C. Natural Environment 
CP Policy CON 1.1.2 Wetland and Habitat Indicators.  Escambia County has 
adopted and will use the National Wetlands Inventory Map, the Escambia County Soils 
Survey, and the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission’s (FFWCC) 
LANDSAT imagery as indicators of the potential presence of wetlands or listed wildlife 
habitat in the review of applications for development approval.  
 
CP Policy CON 1.1.6 Habitat Protection. Escambia County will coordinate with the 
FDEP, FFWCC, and other state or federal agencies so as to provide the fullest 
protection to marine or wildlife habitats that may be impacted by existing or proposed 
development within the County. 
 
CP Policy CON 1.3.6 Wetland Development Provisions. Development in wetlands will 
not be allowed unless sufficient uplands do not exist to avoid a taking.  In this case, 
development in wetlands will be restricted to allow residential density uses as indicated 
by the LDC. 
 
CP Policy CON 1.6.3 Tree Protection.  Escambia County will protect trees through 
LDC provisions. 
 



Analysis:  As stated in the Sector Plan document, Section 5.01, Natural Resources, the 
DSAP contains significant wetland systems that are listed as a Regionally Significant 
Natural Resource by the Emerald Coast Regional Planning Council and the final design 
was to avoid and minimize wetland impacts to the greatest extent possible.  The 
applicant stated that there is no development proposed on the subject parcel.  Once a 
project is proposed, the application will be reviewed and must receive approval through 
the Site Plan Review process. 
 
3. Comprehensive Plan requirements for changes to an existing DSAP. 

 
OBJ FLU 16.6 Specific Area Plans 
 
Changes to an Existing DSAP:  Any addition or deletion of property or changes to the 
neighborhood, center or district boundaries in an approved DSAP shall follow the 
County’s established processes. It shall include an evaluation and analysis of the 
impacts to the approved or planned land uses and the ability of the proposed 
amendment to meet the principles and guidelines outlined in this plan.  Such additions 
or deletions shall not be designed to create remnant areas or fragmented DSAPs. 
 
Evaluation and Analysis.  In recognitions of the benefits of long-range planning for 
specific areas, Escambia County   adopted the Sector plan which is intended to promote 
long-term planning for development and conservation. The primary component of the 
Sector plan is two DSAP land use plans. There are two DSAP land use plans, 
Muscogee DSAP and Jacks Branch, that capture the consensus long-term vision for the 
area.  Both DSAPs were assigned development types and associated densities based 
on the proportionate share of the overall sector plan.   
The total developable land under the Muscogee DSAP, located in the southern section 
of the SP, is approximately 3,380 acres; under the Jacks Branch DSAP, located in the 
northern section of the SP, the total developable land is approximately 5,231.70 acres, 
as can be identified in Figure 2.01A, Attachment A. 
 
The subject parcel is in the southeast area of the Jacks Branch DSAP with access from 
Well Line Road to Highway 29.  Analysis of the areas under the DSAP Land Use Plan 
designated the parcel as being Conservation Neighborhood. If approved, the requested 
removal of the parcel would not create a fragmented DSAP in Section JB-53 with  
parcels. 
 
4. Parcel size in relation to the individual DSAP land use category and in relation 
to the overall Sector Plan, and the aggregate acreage of any granted opt-outs. 
 
The total developable acreage in the entire Sector Plan is 8,611.80 acres. Based on 
staff calculations, utilizing data from DSAP document Section 2.02 , the applicant’s 
parcel totaling 19.34+/- acres, represent 0.22% of the existing developable acreage of 
the Sector Plan.  
Under Section 2.02 Development Program calculation tables, (page 34 of the DSAP) 
the total residential developable acreage of the Jacks Branch DSAP under the 



Conservation Neighborhood Land Use is 2,565.6 acres. Removal of the applicant’s 
19.34 +/-acres will result in a 0.75% decrease in developable acres. 

 
Figure A 



The specific Jacks Branch DSAP Land Use for parcels in sections JB-53 (Figure A) is 
identified as Conservation Neighborhood with total dwelling unit development 
allowances assigned as follows: 
 
JB-53 section total development acreage 38.3 acres 
-low density x (0.1) yielding a total density of 3 dwelling units 
-medium density x (1) yielding a total density of 38 dwelling units 
-high density x (3) yielding a total density of 114 dwelling units 

 
Derived from the analysis of the baseline data we can identify the following trends: 
JB-53 section 
a. the applicant’s parcel area represents 0.22% of the total developable area.  
b. removal of the applicant’s 19.34 (+/-) acres from the total developable acreage for 
section JB-53, will result in a reduction of 58.02 total dwelling units under the high-
density allocation. 
 
This is the Seventh Opting-Out request submitted to and processed by County staff. If 
approved, the total Sector Plan aggregate acreage will be 154.45 
 
The original Sector Plan profile identified approximately 15,000 acres of land, the 
availability of infrastructure and public services and the protection of natural resources; 
the calculations used to complete the maximum development scenario for the Plan were 
specific and resulted in a balanced jobs-to-housing ratio. Changes to or variations of 
any of the original data used for the plan could hinder the balance and the viability of 
attaining the SP goals and objectives. 
Assuming a maximum theoretical buildout under the mixture of uses, the DSAP area 
would produce approximately 27,145 jobs. When analyzed using the maximum 
residential build-out of 23,000 dwelling units, the result, is a jobs-to-employed residents’ 
ratio of 1.19. It should be noted that although there is no single perfect ratio, an area is 
generally considered to be “balanced” if it has a jobs-to-housing ratio of roughly 0.8 to 
1.2. If the proposed amendment is approved the resulting job-to-housing ratio will be 
1.20. 

5. The existing transportation infrastructure and any effect the proposal may have 
on the capacity of that infrastructure. 
TTO Staff has reviewed the Sector Plan Opt-Out Case OSP-2020-02, 1000 BLK Pine 
Top Lane (parcels 03-1N-31-3401-000-000), agenda item for the Planning Board 
meeting scheduled for October 6, 2020. Please see the below comments. 
 
The property in question is located on either side of Pine Top Lane and has direct 
access from Well Line Road.   Pine Top Lane is a two-lane undivided facility without 
paved shoulders.  The approximate pavement width of Pine Top Lane is 18 feet, with a 
right-of-way width of 64 feet.  The posted speed is 35 MPH. Well Line Road is also a 
two-lane undivided facility without paved shoulders.  The approximate pavement width 



for this segment of the roadway is 18 feet, with a right-of-way width of 90 feet.  The 
posted speed on Well Line Road is 35 MPH. 
 
The County has a project in design for a Well Line Road extension. We have 60% plans 
to extend Well Line Road by constructing a road through an unopened/un-acquired area 
along the Well Line Road corridor between Andalusia Road and Jacks Branch Road. 
Once acquired, the new roadway will consist of 120' of county-owned right-of-way with 
12' travel lanes, 5' paved shoulders, and drainage improvements. Holding ponds and a 
bridge will be constructed at various locations along the corridor.  
 
The County collected a traffic count on Well Line Road between Pine Top Lane and the 
road to Cantonment Park, September 9, 2020.  The daily volume was recorded as 
1,878.  
 
TTO’s review is solely based off the application submittal packet, so the comments 
above hold no bearing on any future TTO comments during the Development Review 
process. 
 
6. The underlying zoning district and the compatibility with the surrounding DSAP 
Land Use designation. 

The existing parcel is currently zoned Low-Density residential (LDR). If removed from 
the SP, the following range of permitted uses are allowed under the existing zoning 
district:   
Sec. 3-2.5 Low Density Residential district (LDR).  
(a) Purpose. The Low Density Residential (LDR) district has a density of four dwellings 
units per acre.  The district establishes appropriate areas and land use regulations for 
residential uses at low densities within suburban areas. The primary intent of the district is 
to provide for large-lot suburban type residential neighborhood development that blends 
aspects of rural openness with the benefits of urban street connectivity, and at greater 
density than the Rural Residential district. Residential uses within the LDR district are 
predominantly detached single-family dwellings. Clustering dwellings on smaller residential 
lots may occur where needed to protect prime farmland from non-agricultural use or to 
conserve and protect environmentally sensitive areas. The district allows non-residential 
uses that are compatible with suburban residential neighborhoods and the natural 
resources of the area. 
(b) Permitted uses. Permitted uses within the LDR district are limited to the following:  

(1) Residential.  
a. Manufactured (mobile) homes only within existing manufactured home parks or 
subdivisions, or on land zoned SDD prior to adoption of LDR zoning. No new or 
expanded manufactured home parks or subdivisions.  
b. Single-family dwellings (other than manufactured homes), detached and only one 
per lot, excluding accessory dwellings. Accessory dwellings only on lots two acres or 
larger. Attached single-family dwellings and zero lot line subdivision only on land 
zoned V-5 or SDD prior to adoption of LDR zoning.  



c. Two-family dwellings and multi-family dwellings up to four units per dwelling 
(triplex and quadruplex) only on land zoned V-5 or SDD prior to adoption of LDR 
zoning. 
See also conditional uses in this district. 

(2) Retail sales. No retail sales.  
(3) Retail services. No retail services.  
(4) Public and civic. 

a. Cemeteries, family only.  
b. Public utility structures, excluding telecommunications towers. 
See also conditional uses in this district. 

(5) Recreation and entertainment.  
a. Marinas, private only.  
b. Parks without permanent restrooms or outdoor event lighting.  

See also conditional uses in this district.  
(6) Industrial and related. No industrial or related uses.  
(7) Agricultural and related. On land not zoned SDD prior to adoption of LDR zoning, 
agricultural production and storage is limited to food primarily for personal consumption 
by the producer. The following additional agricultural uses are allowed on lands zoned 
SDD prior to LDR zoning:  

a. Agriculture, but no farm animals except horses and other domesticated equines 
kept on site, and stables for such animals, accessory to a private residential use with 
a minimum lot area of two acres and a maximum of one animal per acre.  
b. Aquaculture, marine or freshwater.  
c. Produce display and sales of fruit, vegetables and similar agricultural products.  
d. Silviculture 
 

The Escambia County Land Development Code defines compatibility as a condition in 
which land uses, activities or conditions can coexist in relative proximity to each other in 
a stable fashion over time such that no use, activity, or condition is unduly negatively 
impacted directly or indirectly by another use, activity, or condition. The character and 
intensity of the LDR zoning district is compatible with the low densities in the 
Conservation Neighborhood.  
The DSAP Land Use for the surrounding parcels is strictly Conservation Neighborhood; 
based on the Residential Guidelines language, the Conservation Neighborhood Land 
Use is designed to allow clustered subdivisions of detached housing, with a maximum 
density of 3 dwellings units per net acre. 
 
7. The consistency of any requested Future Land Use designation with the 
underlying zoning. 
 
Should the Opt-Out be approved, and the MU-S Future Land Use category assigned, 
the most intense use will be dictated by the LDR zoning category, which allows for 
residential developments of 4 du/acre.  The requested MU-S FLU category will be 
consistent with the underlying zoning uses densities and intensities allowed by LDR. 
From the Escambia County 2030 Comprehensive Plan:  
 



FLUM Mixed-Use Suburban (MU-S) 
General Description: Intended for a mix of residential and non-residential uses while 
promoting compatible infill development and the separation of urban and suburban 
land uses. 
Range of Allowable Uses: Residential, retail sales & services, professional office, 
recreational facilities, public and civic, limited agriculture. 
Standards: 
Residential Maximum Density:  25 du/acre 
Non-Residential Minimum Intensity: None 
Maximum Intensity: 1.0 Floor Area Ratio (FAR) 
 
Escambia County intends to achieve the following mix of land uses for new 
development within ¼ mile of arterial roadways or transit corridors by 2030:  
a) Residential 8% to 25%  
b) Public/Rec/Inst. 5% to 20%  
c) Non-Residential:  
Retail Service-30% to 50%  
Office-25% to 50% 
 
In areas beyond ¼ mile of arterial roadways or transit corridors, the following mix of land 
uses is anticipated:  
a) Residential 70% to 85%  
b) Public/Rec/Inst. 10% to 25%  
c) Non-Residential 5% to 10% 
 
8. Previous FLU designation 
 
Prior to adoption of the DSAP, the FLU designation for this parcel was The Cottage 
Hill/Quintette Area (Area #15) which stated approximately 70 percent of the lands within 
the node shall remain in agricultural uses, 25 percent may be developed in residential 
uses and five percent may be developed in commercial or light industrial uses. The 
intensity of the nonresidential uses shall be defined by limiting the maximum amount of 
impervious surface to 82 percent and a floor area ratio of 1.1. 
 
9. Analysis to consider whether the applicant lost development rights or was 
effectively downzoned as part of the Sector Plan adoption. 
 
The vacant 19.34 (+/-) acre parcel had a FLU designation of Activity Area 15 (AA15).  
The table, 7-1 under Chapter 7 of the 2020 Comprehensive Plan, Policy 7.A.4.8: Rural 
Densities, established the density of residential uses in the agriculture, rural and activity 
area(nodes). The residential density, lot sizes clustering and size of proposed new 
subdivisions would have been governed by the table based on the location of proposed 
development site and its relationship to an activity node. Any development at that time 
would have been required to meet the design standards in the LDC or submit a 
proposal for development, however there is no record that the property owner submitted 



a plan or received an approved Development Order, therefore the applicant did not lose 
development rights. 
 
Prior to the adoption of the Mid-West Escambia Sector Plan, the vacant parcel was 
zoned Villages Clustered Residential, V-5. The Villages Clustered Residential zoning 
districts where characterized by rural land development patterns, as stated in the 
previous zoning district of V-5, in the prior LDC.  The V-5 densities reflected the need 
for more affordable lot sizes for single family detached, attached structures, duplexes, 
quadraplexes, townhouses, and patio homes that would be allowed with a gross density 
(four units per acre, if sewered and clustered) or gross density (one unit per acre, if 
unsewered). Based on the available data, the residential density for the parcel were 
in-fact increased and decreased based on rather a development is sewered and 
clustered or unsewered by the adoption of the Sector Plan and the assignment of the 
Conservation Neighborhood Land Use under the DSAP, which provides a maximum 
allowance of 3 du/acre. 
If approved, any future development associated with this parcel will be evaluated during 
the Site Plan Review process. The review will utilize the current zoning regulations 
addressing and minimizing any potential impacts that the proposed development could 
have on the characteristics of the existing low to mid-density residential development 
listed under the SP’s Land Uses. 
If approved, the SP boundary map will be adjusted accordingly, to reflect the removal of 
the parcel from the Plan as shown in Attachment B. 
If approved the parcels will be assigned the Future Land Use Category of MU-S as 
shown in Attachment C. 



32 September 2011

¹º

nm

ïï

ïï

nm

ïï

ïï

22
!

!

!

!

!

§̈¦10

MUSCOGEE
DSAP

JACKS BRANCH
DSAP

!

!

!

!

N HW
Y 29

HWY 196

S 
H

IG
H

W
AY

 9
7

MUSCOGEE ROAD

JA
C

K
S 

B
R

A
N

C
H

 R
O

A
D

RI
VE

R 
A

NN
EX

 R
D

W KINGSFIELD ROAD

WELL LINE ROAD

QUINTETTE RD

SANTA
 ROSA ROAD

M-49

JB-52

M-57

JB-30

M-1

JB-29

M-29

M-20

JB-14

JB-1

M-42
M-15

JB-51

JB-8

JB-60

M-47

M-7

M-2

JB-22

M-27

M-6

JB-47

JB-2

M-44

M-21

JB-72

JB-43

JB-9

JB-41

JB-37

M-8

JB-12

JB-3

JB-48

M-26

JB-65

JB-71

JB-57

JB-33

JB-24

JB-31

JB-46JB-38

JB-10

JB-40

JB-58

JB-11

JB-32

JB-73

JB-39

M-28

JB-15

M-29

M-11

JB-36

JB-42

M-25

M-39

JB-21

M-56

M-37

M-9

JB-63JB-64

JB-56

M-35

M-52

JB-26

M-48

M-55

M-36

M-22

M-54

M-13

M-32

M-12

JB-55

JB-27

M-3

JB-4

JB-53

JB-23

M-30

JB-35

M-24

JB-62

JB-28

M-43

JB-75

JB-70

M-17

JB-69

JB-25

JB-16

M-31

M-18

JB-34

M-4
M-53

JB-59

M-5

M-45

M-41

JB-66
JB-68

JB-5

JB-6

M-50

JB-61

M-29

M-10

JB-74

M-34

JB-13

M-19

JB-7

JB-20

JB-67

M-38

M-23

JB-45

M-40

JB-19

JB-49

JB-18

JB-50

M-14

JB-17

JB-54

M-51

JB-44

M-29

M-46

M-16

Legend

DSAP Boundary

Regional Employment

Town Center

Village Center

Neighborhood Center

Traditional Village

Traditional Garden

Suburban Garden

Conservation Neighborhood

Public

Low-Impact Natural Resource Area

Conservation

Proposed Bee Line Corridor

Existing ROW

Proposed ROW

Railroad

nm Elementary / Middle School

¹º High School

ïï Community Park

22 Regional Park

Notes:
1.  Location and extent of Low-impact Natural Resource

Areas are approximate and subject to change pursuant
to permitting through the Northwest Florida Water
Management District.

2. Proposed roadway alignments are conceptual and subject
  to further refinement and permitting.

3. The Potential Beeline Corridor is conceptual in nature and
  not intended to depict a pre-determined alignment.

4. Public park and school sites have been preliminarily
located based upon calculated demand at build-out and
 proximity to population centers.  The specific location
and size of the identified sites are subject to approval by
the site owner and acquisition by the appropriate
governing authority and may change accordingly.  The
preliminary site locations shall not be construed as a
 requirement for the construction of parks and schools
on the identified sites or as otherwise prejudicing
the site owner's ability to develop the site.

Figure 2.01.A  Final Land Use Plan

jclemos
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT A

jclemos
Polygon

jclemos
Polygon



32 September 2011

¹º

nm

ïï

ïï

nm

ïï

ïï

22
!

!

!

!

!

§̈¦10

MUSCOGEE
DSAP

JACKS BRANCH
DSAP

!

!

!

!

N HW
Y 29

HWY 196

S 
H

IG
H

W
AY

 9
7

MUSCOGEE ROAD

JA
C

K
S 

B
R

A
N

C
H

 R
O

A
D

RI
VE

R 
A

NN
EX

 R
D

W KINGSFIELD ROAD

WELL LINE ROAD

QUINTETTE RD

SANTA
 ROSA ROAD

M-49

JB-52

M-57

JB-30

M-1

JB-29

M-29

M-20

JB-14

JB-1

M-42
M-15

JB-51

JB-8

JB-60

M-47

M-7

M-2

JB-22

M-27

M-6

JB-47

JB-2

M-44

M-21

JB-72

JB-43

JB-9

JB-41

JB-37

M-8

JB-12

JB-3

JB-48

M-26

JB-65

JB-71

JB-57

JB-33

JB-24

JB-31

JB-46JB-38

JB-10

JB-40

JB-58

JB-11

JB-32

JB-73

JB-39

M-28

JB-15

M-29

M-11

JB-36

JB-42

M-25

M-39

JB-21

M-56

M-37

M-9

JB-63JB-64

JB-56

M-35

M-52

JB-26

M-48

M-55

M-36

M-22

M-54

M-13

M-32

M-12

JB-55

JB-27

M-3

JB-4

JB-53

JB-23

M-30

JB-35

M-24

JB-62

JB-28

M-43

JB-75

JB-70

M-17

JB-69

JB-25

JB-16

M-31

M-18

JB-34

M-4
M-53

JB-59

M-5

M-45

M-41

JB-66
JB-68

JB-5

JB-6

M-50

JB-61

M-29

M-10

JB-74

M-34

JB-13

M-19

JB-7

JB-20

JB-67

M-38

M-23

JB-45

M-40

JB-19

JB-49

JB-18

JB-50

M-14

JB-17

JB-54

M-51

JB-44

M-29

M-46

M-16

Legend

DSAP Boundary

Regional Employment

Town Center

Village Center

Neighborhood Center

Traditional Village

Traditional Garden

Suburban Garden

Conservation Neighborhood

Public

Low-Impact Natural Resource Area

Conservation

Proposed Bee Line Corridor

Existing ROW

Proposed ROW

Railroad

nm Elementary / Middle School

¹º High School

ïï Community Park

22 Regional Park

Notes:
1.  Location and extent of Low-impact Natural Resource

Areas are approximate and subject to change pursuant
to permitting through the Northwest Florida Water
Management District.

2. Proposed roadway alignments are conceptual and subject
  to further refinement and permitting.

3. The Potential Beeline Corridor is conceptual in nature and
  not intended to depict a pre-determined alignment.

4. Public park and school sites have been preliminarily
located based upon calculated demand at build-out and
 proximity to population centers.  The specific location
and size of the identified sites are subject to approval by
the site owner and acquisition by the appropriate
governing authority and may change accordingly.  The
preliminary site locations shall not be construed as a
 requirement for the construction of parks and schools
on the identified sites or as otherwise prejudicing
the site owner's ability to develop the site.

Figure 2.01.A  Final Land Use Plan

jclemos
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT B

jclemos
Polygon

jclemos
Polygon

jclemos
Rectangle

jclemos
Polygon



REC

MU-S ¬«Conservation
Neighborhood

¬«Conservation
Neighborhood

¬«Wetland

¬«Wetland

¬«Wetland

¬«Wetland

¬«Wetland

¬«Conservation
Neighborhood

¬«Conservation
Neighborhood

WELL LINE

BROOKHILLS

JE
SS

E

PIN
E T

OP

LAKEVIEW

FOREHAND

ROSE PETAL

BROOKHILLS

FDOT

0 400 800200
Feet

OSP-2020-02 Proposed FLU
MU-S

This map was prepared by 
Escambia County Development Services 
provided for information purposes only. 
The data is not guaranteed accurate 
or suitable for any use other
than that for which it was gathered. 
User: jclemos
Date: 9/10/2020

MU-S
MU-S

ATTACHMENT C



3363 WEST PARK PLACE • PENSACOLA, FLORIDA  32505 • 850-595-3404 • 850-595-3405 (FAX) 

 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:  Andrew Holmer, Division Manager 
Development Services Department 

 
FROM: Terri V. Malone, AICP, Transportation Planner 
  Transportation & Traffic Operations Division 
 
DATE: September 24, 2020 
 
RE: Transportation & Traffic Operations (TTO) Comments – OSP-2020-02 
 

TTO Staff has reviewed the Sector Plan Opt-Out Case OSP-2020-02 1,000 Block of 
Well Line Road, agenda item for the Planning Board meeting scheduled for October 6, 2020. 
Please see the below comments. 

 
The property in question is located on either side of Pine Top Lane and has direct 

access from Well Line Road.   Pine Top Lane is a two-lane undivided facility without paved 
shoulders.  The approximate pavement width of Pine Top Lane is 18 feet, with a right-of-way 
width of 64 feet.  The posted speed is 35 MPH. Well Line Road is also a two-lane undivided 
facility without paved shoulders.  The approximate pavement width for this segment of the 
roadway is 18 feet, with a right-of-way width of 90 feet.  The posted speed on Well Line Road is 
35 MPH. 

 
The County has a project in design for a Well Line Road extension. We have 60% plans 

to extend Well Line Road by constructing a road through an unopened/un-acquired area along 
the Well Line Road corridor between Andalusia Road and Jacks Branch Road. Once acquired, 
the new roadway will consist of 120' of county-owned right-of-way with 12' travel lanes, 5' paved 
shoulders, and drainage improvements. Holding ponds and a bridge will be constructed at 
various locations along the corridor.  

 
The County collected a traffic count on Well Line Road between Pine Top Lane and the 

road to Cantonment Park, September 9, 2020.  The daily volume was recorded as 1,878.  
 
TTO’s review is solely based off the application submittal packet, so the comments 

above hold no bearing on any future TTO comments during the Development Review process. 
  

cc: Horace Jones, Development Services Department Director 
Joy Jones, P.E., Engineering Department Director 
Christine Fanchi, P.E., Transportation Engineer 

 John C. Fisher, Development Services Department 



LEGAL REVIEW

(COUNTY DEPARTMENT USE ONLY)

Document:                                                                                 

Date:                                                                                                 

Date requested back by:                                                 

Requested by:                                                                                  

Phone Number:                                                                                

(LEGAL USE ONLY)

Legal Review by                                                                              

Date Received:                                               

               Approved as to form and legal sufficiency.

               Not approved.

               Make subject to legal signoff.

Additional comments:



 

PB: 10-6-2020 
Re: OSP-2020-02 
Draft: legal sign-off 

 

 
 ORDINANCE NUMBER 2020-   
 

 AN ORDINANCE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE 
ESCAMBIA COUNTY MID-WEST SECTOR PLAN, FINAL LAND USE 
PLAN, FIGURE 2.01.A, REMOVING A PARCEL WITHIN SECTION 03, 
TOWNSHIP 1N, RANGE 31W, PARCEL NUMBER 3401-000-000 
TOTALING 19.34 (+/-) ACRES, LOCATED ON PINE TOP LANE, FROM 
THE   ESCAMBIA COUNTY   MID-WEST   SECTOR   PLAN; FURTHER 
AMENDING PART II OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE OF 
ORDINANCES, THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 
2030, AS AMENDED, AMENDING CHAPTER 7, “THE FUTURE LAND 
USE ELEMENT,” POLICY FLU 1.1.1, TO PROVIDE FOR AN 
AMENDMENT TO THE 2030 FUTURE LAND USE MAP, ASSIGNING A 
FUTURE LAND USE CATEGORY TO A PARCEL WITHIN SECTION 30, 
TOWNSHIP 1N, RANGE 31W, PARCEL NUMBER 3401-000-000 
TOTALING 19.34 (+/-) ACRES, OF MIXED-USE SUBURBAN (MU-S); 
PROVIDING FOR A TITLE; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 163, Part II, Florida Statutes, Escambia County adopted 
its Comprehensive Plan on April 29, 2014; and 

 
WHEREAS, Chapter 16, FLU 16.6.1.V of the Escambia County Comprehensive Plan 
provides guidelines for removing properties from an approved DSAP; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Escambia County Planning Board conducted a public hearing and 
forwarded a recommendation to the Board of County Commissioners to consider changes 
(amendments) to the boundaries of the Escambia County Mid-West Sector Plan, Final 
Land Use Plan Map, Figure 2.01.A, Attachment “A;” and 

 
WHEREAS, Chapter 125, Florida Statutes, empowers the Board of County 
Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida to prepare, amend and enforce 
comprehensive plans for the development of the County; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Escambia County Planning Board conducted a public hearing and 
forwarded a recommendation to the Board of County Commissioners to consider changes 
(amendments) to the Comprehensive Plan; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida finds that 
the adoption of this amendment is in the best interest of the County and its citizens; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of County Commissioners of 
Escambia County, Florida, as follows: 

 



 

PB: 10-6-2020 
Re: OSP-2020-02 
Draft: legal sign-off 

 

  
 

Section 1. Purpose and Intent 
 

This Ordinance is enacted to carry out the purpose and intent of, and exercise the 
authority set out in, the Community Planning Act, Sections 163.3161 through 163.3215, 
Florida Statutes. 

 
Section 2. Title of Map Amendment 
 

This Final Land Use Plan Map amendment shall be entitled – "Opting-Out Escambia 
County Mid-West Sector Plan OSP 2020-02." 

 
Section 3. Changes to the Final Land Use Plan 

 
The Final Land Use Plan (Figure 2.01.A), as adopted in the Escambia County Mid-West 
Sector Plan, Land Use Plan and Development Program, and all notations, references and 
information shown thereon, is further amended to remove the following parcel: 

 
One parcel within Section 03, Township 1N, Range 31W, parcel number 
3401-000-000 totaling 19.34 (+/-) acres, located on Pine Top Lane. 

The amended Final Land Use Plan Map boundary is reflected in Attachment “B.” 

Section 4. Title of Comprehensive Plan Amendment 
 

This Comprehensive Plan amendment shall be entitled – "Opting-Out Escambia County 
Mid-West Sector Plan OSP 2020-02." 

 
Section 5. Changes to the 2030 Future Land Use Map 
 

The 2030 Future Land Use Map, as adopted by reference and codified in Part II of the 
Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Escambia County Comprehensive Plan: 2030, 
as amended; Chapter 7, "Future Land Use Element," Policy FLU 1.1.1; and all notations, 
references and information shown thereon, is further amended to include the following 
future land use changes: 

 
A parcel within Section 03, Township 1N, Range 31W, parcel number 3401-
000-000 totaling 19.34 (+/-) acres, located on Pine Top Lane, included as 
Attachment “C,” assigning a FLU of Mixed-Use Suburban (MU-S). 

 
  



PB: 10-6-2020 
Re: OSP-2020-02 
Draft: legal sign-off 

Section 6. Severability 

If any section, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be invalid or 
unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, the holding shall in no way affect 
the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 

Section 7. Effective Date 

Pursuant to Section 163.3184(3)(c)(4), Florida Statutes, this Ordinance shall not become 
effective until 31 days after the Department of Economic Opportunity notifies Escambia 
County that   the plan amendment package is complete. If timely challenged, this 
Ordinance shall not become effective until the Department of Economic Opportunity or 
the Administration Commission enters a final order determining the Ordinance to be in 
compliance. 

DONE AND ENACTED this day of , 2020. 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

By: 
Steven Barry, Chairman 

ATTEST: PAM CHILDERS 
CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT 

By: 
Deputy Clerk 

(SEAL) 

ENACTED: 
FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE: 
EFFECTIVE DATE: 

Approved as to form and legal sufficiency.

By/Title: __________________________

Date: _____________________________09-14-2020



32 September 2011

¹º

nm

ïï

ïï

nm

ïï

ïï

22
!

!

!

!

!

§̈¦10

MUSCOGEE
DSAP

JACKS BRANCH
DSAP

!

!

!

!

N HW
Y 29

HWY 196

S 
H

IG
H

W
AY

 9
7

MUSCOGEE ROAD

JA
C

K
S 

B
R

A
N

C
H

 R
O

A
D

RI
VE

R 
A

NN
EX

 R
D

W KINGSFIELD ROAD

WELL LINE ROAD

QUINTETTE RD

SANTA
 ROSA ROAD

M-49

JB-52

M-57

JB-30

M-1

JB-29

M-29

M-20

JB-14

JB-1

M-42
M-15

JB-51

JB-8

JB-60

M-47

M-7

M-2

JB-22

M-27

M-6

JB-47

JB-2

M-44

M-21

JB-72

JB-43

JB-9

JB-41

JB-37

M-8

JB-12

JB-3

JB-48

M-26

JB-65

JB-71

JB-57

JB-33

JB-24

JB-31

JB-46JB-38

JB-10

JB-40

JB-58

JB-11

JB-32

JB-73

JB-39

M-28

JB-15

M-29

M-11

JB-36

JB-42

M-25

M-39

JB-21

M-56

M-37

M-9

JB-63JB-64

JB-56

M-35

M-52

JB-26

M-48

M-55

M-36

M-22

M-54

M-13

M-32

M-12

JB-55

JB-27

M-3

JB-4

JB-53

JB-23

M-30

JB-35

M-24

JB-62

JB-28

M-43

JB-75

JB-70

M-17

JB-69

JB-25

JB-16

M-31

M-18

JB-34

M-4
M-53

JB-59

M-5

M-45

M-41

JB-66
JB-68

JB-5

JB-6

M-50

JB-61

M-29

M-10

JB-74

M-34

JB-13

M-19

JB-7

JB-20

JB-67

M-38

M-23

JB-45

M-40

JB-19

JB-49

JB-18

JB-50

M-14

JB-17

JB-54

M-51

JB-44

M-29

M-46

M-16

Legend

DSAP Boundary

Regional Employment

Town Center

Village Center

Neighborhood Center

Traditional Village

Traditional Garden

Suburban Garden

Conservation Neighborhood

Public

Low-Impact Natural Resource Area

Conservation

Proposed Bee Line Corridor

Existing ROW

Proposed ROW

Railroad

nm Elementary / Middle School

¹º High School

ïï Community Park

22 Regional Park

Notes:
1.  Location and extent of Low-impact Natural Resource

Areas are approximate and subject to change pursuant
to permitting through the Northwest Florida Water
Management District.

2. Proposed roadway alignments are conceptual and subject
  to further refinement and permitting.

3. The Potential Beeline Corridor is conceptual in nature and
  not intended to depict a pre-determined alignment.

4. Public park and school sites have been preliminarily
located based upon calculated demand at build-out and
 proximity to population centers.  The specific location
and size of the identified sites are subject to approval by
the site owner and acquisition by the appropriate
governing authority and may change accordingly.  The
preliminary site locations shall not be construed as a
 requirement for the construction of parks and schools
on the identified sites or as otherwise prejudicing
the site owner's ability to develop the site.

Figure 2.01.A  Final Land Use Plan

jclemos
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT A

jclemos
Polygon

jclemos
Polygon



32 September 2011

¹º

nm

ïï

ïï

nm

ïï

ïï

22
!

!

!

!

!

§̈¦10

MUSCOGEE
DSAP

JACKS BRANCH
DSAP

!

!

!

!

N HW
Y 29

HWY 196

S 
H

IG
H

W
AY

 9
7

MUSCOGEE ROAD

JA
C

K
S 

B
R

A
N

C
H

 R
O

A
D

RI
VE

R 
A

NN
EX

 R
D

W KINGSFIELD ROAD

WELL LINE ROAD

QUINTETTE RD

SANTA
 ROSA ROAD

M-49

JB-52

M-57

JB-30

M-1

JB-29

M-29

M-20

JB-14

JB-1

M-42
M-15

JB-51

JB-8

JB-60

M-47

M-7

M-2

JB-22

M-27

M-6

JB-47

JB-2

M-44

M-21

JB-72

JB-43

JB-9

JB-41

JB-37

M-8

JB-12

JB-3

JB-48

M-26

JB-65

JB-71

JB-57

JB-33

JB-24

JB-31

JB-46JB-38

JB-10

JB-40

JB-58

JB-11

JB-32

JB-73

JB-39

M-28

JB-15

M-29

M-11

JB-36

JB-42

M-25

M-39

JB-21

M-56

M-37

M-9

JB-63JB-64

JB-56

M-35

M-52

JB-26

M-48

M-55

M-36

M-22

M-54

M-13

M-32

M-12

JB-55

JB-27

M-3

JB-4

JB-53

JB-23

M-30

JB-35

M-24

JB-62

JB-28

M-43

JB-75

JB-70

M-17

JB-69

JB-25

JB-16

M-31

M-18

JB-34

M-4
M-53

JB-59

M-5

M-45

M-41

JB-66
JB-68

JB-5

JB-6

M-50

JB-61

M-29

M-10

JB-74

M-34

JB-13

M-19

JB-7

JB-20

JB-67

M-38

M-23

JB-45

M-40

JB-19

JB-49

JB-18

JB-50

M-14

JB-17

JB-54

M-51

JB-44

M-29

M-46

M-16

Legend

DSAP Boundary

Regional Employment

Town Center

Village Center

Neighborhood Center

Traditional Village

Traditional Garden

Suburban Garden

Conservation Neighborhood

Public

Low-Impact Natural Resource Area

Conservation

Proposed Bee Line Corridor

Existing ROW

Proposed ROW

Railroad

nm Elementary / Middle School

¹º High School

ïï Community Park

22 Regional Park

Notes:
1.  Location and extent of Low-impact Natural Resource

Areas are approximate and subject to change pursuant
to permitting through the Northwest Florida Water
Management District.

2. Proposed roadway alignments are conceptual and subject
  to further refinement and permitting.

3. The Potential Beeline Corridor is conceptual in nature and
  not intended to depict a pre-determined alignment.

4. Public park and school sites have been preliminarily
located based upon calculated demand at build-out and
 proximity to population centers.  The specific location
and size of the identified sites are subject to approval by
the site owner and acquisition by the appropriate
governing authority and may change accordingly.  The
preliminary site locations shall not be construed as a
 requirement for the construction of parks and schools
on the identified sites or as otherwise prejudicing
the site owner's ability to develop the site.

Figure 2.01.A  Final Land Use Plan

jclemos
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT B

jclemos
Polygon

jclemos
Polygon

jclemos
Rectangle

jclemos
Polygon



REC

MU-S ¬«Conservation
Neighborhood

¬«Conservation
Neighborhood

¬«Wetland

¬«Wetland

¬«Wetland

¬«Wetland

¬«Wetland

¬«Conservation
Neighborhood

¬«Conservation
Neighborhood

WELL LINE

BROOKHILLS

JE
S

SE

PI
N

E 
TO

P

LAKE
VIEW

FOREHAND

ROSE PETAL

BR
O

O
K

H
ILLS

FDOT

0 400 800200
Feet

OSP-2020-02 Proposed FLU
MU-S

This map was prepared by 
Escambia County Development Services 
provided for information purposes only. 
The data is not guaranteed accurate 
or suitable for any use other
than that for which it was gathered. 
User: jclemos
Date: 9/10/2020

MU-S
MU-S

ATTACHMENT C


	Agenda
	Approval of Minutes
	Att1_Draft September 1, 2020 Regular Planning Board Meeting Minutes
	Att2_Monthly Action Follow Up
	Att3_6 Month Outlook
	PLANNING BOARD MONTHLY SCHEDULE
	SIX MONTH OUTLOOK FOR October 2020

	OSP-2020-01
	Att1_Working Case File
	OSP-2020-01
	Location Map
	Zoning Map
	OLD FLU/DSAP Map
	Proposed FLU/DSAP Map
	Aerial Map
	Photos
	Letter of Request
	Application
	Warranty Deed
	Boundary Survey
	Applicant's Data and Analysis
	Staff Analysis
	TTO Staff Comments

	Att2_Draft Ordinance with Attachments
	OSP-2020-02
	Att1_Working Case File
	OSP-2020-02
	Location Map
	Zoning Map
	Existing FLU/DSAP Map
	Proposed FLU/DSAP Map
	Aerial Map
	Photos
	Letter of Request
	Application
	Updated Affidavit
	Warranty Deed
	Boundary Survey
	Staff Analysis
	TTO Staff Comments

	Att2_Draft Ordinance with Attachments

